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792 Questions.

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY.
Thursday, 29 September, 1887.

Questions.—Motion for Adjomrnment—Railway Survey
from Herberton to Georgetown.—~Motion for Ad-
journment—Railway Arbitrator’s Decisions—Elce-
toral Districts Bill.—Lady Bowen Hospital Land Sale
Bill—Permission to Examine a Member of the Legis-
lative Council—Messages from the Legislative
Council.—Personal £xplanation.—Report of Refresh-
ment Rooms Committee.—Supply.—Message from
the Legislative Council.—Adjournment.

The SPEAKER took the chair at half-past

3 o’clock.
QUESTIONS.

Mr. LUMLEY HILIL asked the Minister for
Works—

1. What amount of land was resumed at Mount Perry
for raxlwqy purposes, what amount paid for same, and
who received the money?

2. What compensation was given for removing refi-
nery, and also for removing houses and weigh-bridge,
and to whom so paid?

3. What amount was paid for land for post and
telegraph office, and to whom was the amount paid ¥

The MINISTER FOR WORKS (Hon. C. B.
Dutton) replied—

1 and 2. The area of land taken for yailwsy purposes
at the Mount Perry railway station was 9 acres and
5 perches ; but as this area was included with 3 acres
3 roods and 36 perches from portion 15, distant above
one mile from the station, in the award of the railway
arbitrator, the exact amount of award forthe 9 acres and
5 perches is not stated. It may, howcver, be estimated
that the amount paid to 1Messrs. Hart, Mein, and
Flower, as agents for Mr. J. €. Smyth, for the land ve-
sumed and damage arising thexeupon was £818 11s. 6d.,
which amount includes compensation for all improve-
ments.

3. £300 was paid for land for post and telegraph
office to the credit of Mr, J. C. Smyth.

Mr. STEVENS asked the Minister for
Works—

1. Have the Government abandoned the trial survey
from Nerang to the border ?
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2. If so, will the Government state their rcasons for
doing s0 ?

The MINISTER FOR WORKS replied—

As the Government did not consider the survey
from Nerang to the border a pressing matter, the survey
party recently employed there was transferred to the
Cleveland line.

Mr. HAMILTON asked the Minister for
‘Works—

Is it the intention of the Governimment to commence &
survey of aline of railway from Herberton to George-
town during the present session ?

The MINISTER FOR WORKS replied—

In answer to the hon. member, No.

MOTION ¥OR ADJOURNMENT.
RAmLwAY Survey rroM HERBERTON TO
GEORGETOWN.

Mr. HAMILTON said: Mr. Speaker,—1I
wish to move the adjournment of the House for
the purpose of referring to the particularly
insulting reply given to my question, as a repre-
sentative of the Cook district, by the hon.
Minister for Works just now. We all know
that gentleman’s insulting demeanour in the
House, and we all know very well the vicious man-
ner in which he has turned round upon his own
colleagues, We all know, not only his insult-
ing manner in this House, but also to his sub-
ordinates, and I for one shall not allow myself to
be subjected to it in this House. This question
was asked about a year ago, and it was fenced
upon that occasion. The reply then was that
the line could not he surveyed at present. I sub-
sequently repeated the question a few days ago.
My constituents wished to know, and they were
disgusted with the reply which they received upon
that occasion. My question on the latter
occasion was, <‘Is 1t the intention of the Gov-
ernment to complete the survey of this particular
line ?” and the reply was, ‘“ Not at present.” I
then asked the question to-day—‘‘Is it the
intention of the Government to commence a
survey of a line of railway from Herberton o
Georgetown during the present session?” and
the reply from the Minister for Works was,
“The hon. member knows.” I say that that is
utterly untrue. The Premier, as usual, is
prompting his colleagne. We know very well
that the Premier has not the manliness to tackle
hon. members himself. He is prompting his
colleague now, as he always does, and just as he
did the other night when his colleague was talk-
ing. He held his hand before his face so that
hon. members would not see the manner in which
he was relishing the vicious attack made by the
Minister for Works. The reply I received just
now was, ‘‘ The hon. member knows.”

The MINISTER ¥FOR WORKS: I said
nothing of the sort. I said, ‘“In answer to the
hon. member, no.”

Mr. HAMILTON: I beg to apolegise; I
thought the hon. gentleman said that ‘‘the hon.
member knows.” I take back all I have said,
Mr. Speaker. I thought the hon. Minister for
Works deliberately insulted me by his reply. T
am very sorry L made a mistake. At any rate
the hon. gentleman has given me a straightfor-
ward answer, and, with the consent of the House,
1 will withdraw the motion.

Motion, by leave, withdrawn.,

MOTION ¥OR ADJOURNMENT.
RAILWAY ARBITRATOR’S DESISIONS, —ELRCTORAL
DisTricrs BILL.

Mr. STEVENS said : Mr. Speaker,—I wish
to move the adjournment of the House, in order
to bring under the notice of hon. members a
subject of considerable importance to the com-
munity in general; and that is the subject of
railway arbitration—mot only in general, but
more particularly as regards the arbitration
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cases which have recently occurred in the
Logan district. The decisions point to either
one of two things—either that the person
appointed to act as arbitrator is unfit for his
position or the system is bad. It may be one
or the other, or both. It may be said that, if
I thought my constituents had suffered dftmfme
or considerable injury, I should have brouoht
their case before a committee of the House,
and tried to obtain redress for their grievances
in that manner. But the session is so far
advanced that it would be impossible to get a
committee to deal with the cases, and bring up a
report before the House before the end of the
session. Consequently those persons who suffered
would be put to a considerable amount of expense.
without any result being attained. I have a
long list of cases, but I will only treat them
in a cursory manner, as it would take two
or three evenings to enter into them fully. I
will give some 1nst'1.nces, however, so that hon.
members may judge for themselves. One was
that of H. G. Schneider, who had a small area
of land on the Nerang River. The area of 3
roods 21 perches was resumed, and he claimed
at the rate of £30 per acre, the claim amounting
to £26 8s. 9d. The land was of considerable
value to him, as he had barely sufficient forhis own
requirements. He is a surveyor, and requires a
little land for his horses and a cow. Three years
ago £25 per acre was offered for land .audjomnyT
his, but was refused. Other land in the vicinity
was purchased at £30 per acre, and the purchaser
has since made a considerable amount on his
bargain. Though this was proved by thoroughly
competen’c and respecta.ble witnesses, the valuator
refused to admit that the sum mentioned was a
fair price to pay, and put a ridiculously small
value on it. The land remaining is not enhanced
very much by the railway, because the owner
has to make a considerable detour to make
use of the railway. The award was £7 18s. 10d.
—for land Thonestly worth £30 per acre.
The next case was that of a farmer named
G. A. Hope, living in the same neighbourhood.
The quantity resumed was § acres 11 perches of
really valuable land, and 7 acres 2 roods 37 perches
of land not so good. He claimed £25 per acre
for the good, and £5 per acre for the second
clags. He also claimed 33s. per acre for 40 acres,
which the railway cut off from water, and on
which water could not be obtained. It was
proved that land adjoining this farming land of
Hope’s was sold at £25 per acre—land about
14 mile or 2 miles further {from the railway ; yet
his land was valued at £5 per acre. His daim
amounted to £710 4s., and the evidence proved
clearly that this amount was not a great deal too
much, yet the amount offered by the arbitrator
was £103 11s. 3d. Another person victimised was
Albert Ruge, from whose land rather more than an
acre was lesumed the severed portion consisting
of high ridgy land and gullies, totally unsuitable
for the purpose of manufacturing cordials, by
which he gets his living, His fmnt‘we to the
main road also was cut off, and the property
almost destroyed. It was proved that he gave
£21 per acre some time ago ; but the whole of
the compensation offered was £19 7s. 9d. I am
not going into minute details, because it would
be too tedious to do so; but I will give a few
salient points. Another case was that of Stanley
Harris, from whom 12 acres was resumed, a
considerablequantity being damaged by severance,
He claimed £225inall. A portion of his land was
rendered unfit for cutting up into allotments by
the peculiar shape in which it was left by the
railway and the roads. Land adjoining it was
sold at £75 per acre. A large portion of his land
is completely cut off from permanent water, and
this damages it to a great extent for grazing
purposes. He has had 400 or 500 head of cattle
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grazing on that land, and the portion on the
northern side of the 1aulway is cut off from water.
There was a considerable quantity sold two
and a half years ago at £20 per acre; but the
valuator, in spite of all this evidence, which was
not disputed, places a value of £3 10s. per
acre on the land. In all these cases where
the valuator was asked, “Is the residue of
the land very much enhanced in value?” of
course his reply was always, “Yes”; but when
asked “How ?” or ‘“ To what extent ?” he never
was able to answer ; he said, *‘I consider it is.

The award in this case was £76 0s. 7d. The
next case was that of Robert McReadie, from
whom 6 acres 18 perches was resumed, for
which he claimed the moderate sum of £7 per
acre. Besides that, there were 125 acres cut off
from permanent water, portion of a dairy farm
of very great value to him, and he claimed
25s. an acre on that, the whole amounting
to £199 1s. This gentleman had sold portions
of his land close to the part resumed at the rate
of £40 per acre. There is no permanent water
on the severed portion, and whenever he has tried
to obtain water in any quantity it has turned
out brackish ; so that the severance has rendered
the dairy farm to a great extent valueless.
He has to take his stock one and a-half or
two miles to get through the railway gates
for water, and that entails a considerable
amount of expense and labour. He was awarded
the magnificent sum of £35. Another claim
was that of 3. Campbell, of Beenleigh, for
compensation for the unexpired term of the
lease of a store and dwelling-place at Been-
leigh, which he had to quit because the land
was required for railway purposes. He claims
for the amount of rent and the extra rent he
would have to pay for a new building, the rent
he would have to pay for a dwelling-place for his
manager, the erection of stables and other con-
veniences for himself and his custoiners, and the
considerable loss to him by leaving the best site
in Beenleigh. The arbitrator considered he had
suffered no loss at all, but to give him an award
of some kind he made an award of £10. On
the very face of it this is absurd—to take a
man’s place of business, dwelling-house, all his
conveniences for business, and drive him to
another site not so valuable, and say that he
has suffered no damage. It was proved by com-
petent witnesses that the loss to him would
be £600 through having to go to another site.

The next claim is that of William Saunders, who
had land on that portion of the railway line near
Beenleigh. The land severed by the railway
was used for fattening stock, which were driven
back from the good grass land. Hon, members
will easily understand that cattle which are being
fattened will not feed peaceably where inen are
at work constructing a line, or where a railway
is running. He lost £1 a head on bis stock, and
many of his customers who used to send cattle
for agistment removed them when they found
they were disturbed by the construction of the
railway, Ie claimed £150, and the witnesses
proved that the claim was by no means exorbi-
tant ; but the award of the arbitrator was £50.
No argument was brought forward against the
claim, and no witnesses were examined ; he
simply wrote down £30. John Waters claimed
£405 10s. 1d. for 20 acres 1 rood 15 perches—£10
per acre. A great deal of money was spent in
improving this land and rendering it fit for agri-
culture. £6 per acre was paid for clearing and
stumping, and that alone amounted to £122;
15 acres was severed from water, for which
he put down £15, and there were various other
items, amounting to £65. He applied to a
neighbour to sell him some land adjoining, but
he refused to let him have it at £30 an acre. The
award in this case for all the land taken, the
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damage done by severance and other losses,
was £154 7s. 9d.  Arthur Bryant had land
resumed, and had to remove his dwelling-
house. He made inguiries as to what he could
get his cottage removed for, and the lowest
offer was £15. In addition to that he lost the
land resumed for railway purposes, and vet the
award was £14 63 7d.—actually less than it
would cost to remove his house. W. Stark
claims as compensation £117 for 18 perches of
land in the township of Beenleigh. This was
portion of an orchard in the township, very
valuable land and very highly cultivated, which
returned a very good living indeed toits owner.
He claimed for the resumption of the land, for
a number of fruit-trees destroyed, a number of
grape-vines four years old, in full bearing, and
other items, and for damage to the residue of the
land. As it was of small area, of course the
resumption made it of still less value to him, and
prevented him from making anything like as
good use of it as before. This case was very closely
gone into, a number of witnesses were examined
and cross-examined without their evidence being
shaken, and the amount awarded was £42 12s. 6d.
The valuator, on being examined, said he
knew there were some improvements on the
land, but did not know their value, or what
they were, or anything about them ; and yet he
put a value on the land. The next case is
that of J. F. Mengel. His was a very similar
case. It was a most valuable site, close to the
Queensland National Bank, one of the best
positions in the township, e also lost a num-
ber of truit-trees which had afforded him con-
siderable profit ; and by portion of his land being
cut off he was prevented from enlarging his place
of business. e claimed £275. Evidence was
brought forward to show that it was anything
but an exorbitant claim, but all that was
awarded was £65. Then comes the case of J. F.
Shelley—land resumed, 6 acres 2 roods 26
perches ; claim, £233 10s.; award, £35. This
was utterly inadequate for the damage done.
A considerable amount of land was taken from
him and his property was severed so that
all the water was on one side of the rail-
way line, In cases of that sort it entails
considerable expense to drive the stock to
water across the railway line, even if there is
a gate handy. It is one man’s work to doit;
the stock must be watered at least once a day,
and that occupies a considerable time and in-
creases the expense of working the property.
The amount of the award was only £35. Then
David Yaun, on the Coomera, claimed £681 for
185 acres taken from him in the township
of Coomera. His property had a very valuable
water frontage, and first-class evidence was
given that land adjoining had been sold
for a considerable time at the rate of £100
per acre for building purposes. By the way
the line goes through his property it cuts it
up 1into four or five different pieces, four out of
five being completely severed from the water,
which, of course, reduces the valueof the land
considerably. The amount awarded in his case
was £150.  The next case is that of J, William-
son, 13 acre resumed, £66 10s. claimed. The
road to water was completely closed by the
construction of the railway, so that he was
corupelled to take his stock by a considerable
detour to water; and not only that, but the
road was closed so as to prevent the travelling
public from getting to his place of business—a
butcher’s shop. They could only get to it by
making a detour of about a mile, passing another
butcher’s shop on the way, so, of course, his
business was ruined. Yet the arbitrator in this
case considered there was no damage at all, and
awarded £6 10s. Robert Wilson, in the town-
ship of Beenleigh, had 3 acres 2 roods 36 perches

taken from him., He claimed for damage and
loss about £800, and considerable evidence was
brought forward to prove that the claim was
very moderate; but the evidence was totally
igrored, and only £153 7s. 8d. was awarded for
nearly 3% acres in the centre of the town-
ship of Beenleigh. The last case I will
mention now is that of W. K. Oxenford.
He has a farm on the river where the main
road crosses, and 10 acres 2 roods 7 perches were
resumed. Now, sir, I have no hesitation in
saying that this is amongst the most valuable
land in Queensland, from one end to the other.
If I were asked to show a person the best culti-
vated farm in the Logan district, I should
take him without hesitation to Oxenford’s
farm. Persons travelling by in the coach
always mnotice the high state of cultiva.
tion and fertility of that farm. Nearly
102 acres were resumed, and, of course, that
is a considerable portion of land to lose
from any farm ; and, in addition to that, he has
been put to the expense of moving a lot of his
buildings and machinery. An enormous embank-
ment has been erected for railway purposes in
the middle of the farm, and you can under-
stand the damage that alone would cause
when I explain that the farm is situated
on a flat between the river and a ridge.
In flood-times the water leaves the river, and
skirts that portion of the farm which adjoins
the ridge. During a heavy flood the whole flat
is submerged, and 1n the middle of his farm there
is this enormous embankment—I do not know
how many feet high, but about 150 yards long:
so that in addition to having his farm swamped
by an ordinary flood, the water is thrown back
for a considerable distance by the erection of
that long dam or embankment. I do not intend
to enlarge upon this dam, as I shall have occasion
to refer to it again later on in the session, but I
draw attention to it now in order to show the
immense amount of damage suffered by this
particular farm., The first offer made by the
Railway Department as compensation for the
resumption was £230. The arbitrator awarded
the sum of £215 19s. It was proved in evidence
that the land in that neighbourhood had been
sold for £30 per acre. And yet the arbitrator
only makes the small award of £215 19s. for 108
acres, While admitting freely that the land has
been improved by having a railway terminus
there, still I think it isabsurd on thefaceof it tosay
that inthis casetheowner doesnot deserve greater
compensation than he has received. The main
argument of the valuator was that the valuations
of divisional boards had in many cases been
increased by 50 per cent. The clerk of the
divisional board of Nerang, however, proved
that there had been no valuations made for the
last four years, and that at the time the valua-
tions were made they were made at a very low
rate, In fact, I suppose that any member of this
House who knows anything about agricultural
districts is well aware that the land is
rated at nothing like its full value. But in
this case evidence was adduced proving that
land in the same locality had been sold at
the very high rate of £20 an acre, and yet
the valuator only valued it at £5 per acre.
The papers placed on the table of the House by
the Minister in reference to these resumptions
only contain a condensation of the evidence ; the
cross-examination of witnesses, which is very
important in matters of this kind, being omitted,
I may state that the valuator for the Railway
Department takes notes of the evidence, that the
lawyer from the Crown solicitor’s office takes
notes, and that the arbitrator also takes notes,
and yet it is impossible for the House to get
a complete report of the evidence taken in
these cases. This is an instance in which I
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think it may fairly be claimed that there is
one law for the rich and another for the
poor. If the valuator makes an award of £500
or over, and the claimant is dissatisfied with
his decision, he has the right of appeal, and
may obtain redress in that way ; but any man
whose award is under £500 has no redress, if the
amount is insufficient or unfair, except through
Parliament. It is, I think, almost absurd
to expect any ordinary individual to sit on all
arbitration cases in all parts of the colony and
give everyone fair play. It requires a man
of legal training to sift the evidence brought
forward, for in many cases the arbitrator has no
personal knowledge of the value of the land upon
which he has to adjudicate. There are very few
men who are prepared and qualified to go over
thewholeof the country thearbitrator hastotravel
over, and correctly assess the value of land taken
away for rallway purposes. In these particular
cases I rather imagine that the arbitrator mis-
took his position. Instead of being there as an
arbitrator, in the proper semse of the word, he
seemed to be there more as extra counsel for the
Crown to try and disprove the evidence brought
forward, and to make the cases as bad as he
possibly could for the claimants, and to award as
little as possible. I think that a very much fairer
system of dealing with claims for compensation
for land resumed for railway purposes would be
that under the Public Works Resumption Act,
by which the owner of the land has the right to
nominate one arbitrator the Railway Depart-
ment another, and the two arbitrators thus
nominated appoint anumpire. If that system
was adopted there would be a chance of the
owner of the land getting a fair amount of com-
pensation for the damage done to his property
by the railway resumptions. If, however,
that system is not adopted, and it is con-
sidered necessary to carry on the old system
in connection with these arbitrations, then I
think it is absolutely mnecessary to obtain a
thoroughly qualified man for the position of
arbitrator. From what I have seen of these
cases, and from what I have heard, I think that
a man who occupies that position should be quite
qualified to occupy a seat on the bench as dis-
trict court judge. He requires very much the
same knowledge and ability, as evidence has to
be sifted, the good to be taken from the bad, and
a decision given that is fair to the parties con-
cerned, There is not one of these casesin which
that has taken place; the decisions have been
unfair in the extreme, and there is no remedy
for the claimants except through Parliament.
It is too late to bring the matter forward this
session ; but if T am here next session I shall
certainly bring the cases before the House and
try to obtain redress.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS said: Mr.
Speaker,—We have had a long and pathetic
speech from the hon. member about the arbifra-
tion cases with respect to the land resumed for
railway purposes in the Logan district.  All that
T can say is that I should be very glad fo be
relieved from the necessity of resuming any lands,
but that can only be done by stopping railways,
If they want to have a railway they ought not to
complain of the resumption of land. The hon.
member complains of the way in which the
valuations are made. He says the arbitrator
should accept the evidence of what he calls
competent, reliable, and disinterested persons
in the neighbourhood as to the value of the
Jands resumed. All T can say to that is that if
the arbitrator does that, and accepts the value
put upon the properties by the people brought
forward by those who have to be paid for the
land, it would be a very bad job for the Treasury.
That kind of thing has been going on to a large
extent, I haveseena gooddeal of it; themoney
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paid for land resumed for railway purposes has
been something enormous. If hon. members will
look at the answer I gave this afternoon to & ques-
tion by the hon. member for Cook, Mr. Lumley
Hill, they will see the amount paid for land
resumed at Mount Perry for railway purposes. It
was enough to buy up the fee-simple of the whole
of Mount Perry.  And the sum of £300 was paid
for a post and telegraph site at Mount Perry.
That 1s the very thing to stop railways altogether.
‘What is the use of going on spending money in
that way ? The hon. member referred to a great
many cases in which he said serious damage
had been done, inasmuch as the land in one
particular spot had been bought or sold at £20
or £30 per acre, and the land adjoining,
through which the line passes, was valued
at £5 an acre. I canfind plenty of places
where land may be worth £5 an acre, and
other land ten yards away not worth more than
158, an acre—ironbark and spotted-gum ridges.
The hon. member also stated that in some cases
the water had been cut off from the land. What
would be the value of a place even 1if it had
water, if it consisted of ironbark and spotted-gum
ridges? If a man got £3 10s. an acre for land
of that kind, he got more than it was worth; if
I were valuing land of that description, I cer-
tainly should not give anything like that sum.
If you were to ask any man to buy land out there
at £1 per acre he would look at you aghast. If
railways are to be carried out in those districts
you must get at the value of the land from
someone who is not directly interested in it;
and I venture to say that if the hon. member for
Logan himself wanted to purchase a piece of land
on the Logan at its full market value, he would
not select a man who had an interest in it to
purchase it or determine the price for him. The
hon. gentleman also said that a judge would
make the best railway arbitrator. Inmy opinion
a judge would be about the worst man who
could possibly be appointed to such a situation.
He would take the evidence of interested people
all round, and he would say, “Thisis the evidence,
and my finding must be in accordance with the
evidence.” The real duty of the arbitrator is to
determine by his own judgment, after having
heard the evidence brought before him, and not
to depend entirely upon the evidence of men
whose object is to get all they can out of the
Government. It is quite possible that errors
of judgment may be committed, and the judg-
ment of valuators differs sometimes enor-
mously ag to the value of land. Even in
Brisbane I have known them vary from 25 to
100 per cent. as to the value of town land—men
who were supposed to be competent valuators
too. 1 do not attach much value to the evidence
that has been collected in any particular neigh-
hourhood as to the actusl value of land resumed
for railway purposes. Local witnesses are inter-
ested in keeping up the value of land in their
own neighbourhood ; and unfortunately there is
too great a tendency amongst people generally to
take money out of the Government whenever
they get a chance, and put it into the hands of
private persons.

Ir, MOREHEAD said: Mr. Speaker,—I
think the very moderate and temperate speech
of the hon. member for Tiogan might have been
met in a different way by the MMinister for
Works. It did not seem to me at all necessary,
because the hon. member for Togan brought
before the House certain grievances with regard
1o railway arbitration, that the Minister for
Works should getup and, going, I think, outside
the power which even he possesses, threaten that
he would stop all railways.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS:
nothing of the kind,

I did
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Mr. MOREHEAD : The hon. gentleman said
he had a very easy solution for it, and that was
to stop the railways. One has to handle a deli-
cate question indeed as to the Minister for Works
and the Railway Arbitrator ; but I think it will be
the opinion of most hon.'members who have read
the report of the select committee on the Corser
case that the Railway Arbitrater is utterly unfit
for the position he holds. It is most improper,
I do not hesitate to say, that a person so utterly
incompetent for the position as Mr. Thompson
is, should be clothed with the great authority he
possesses. It is all very well for the Minister
for Works to say that the amounts generally
claimed for compensation are excessive, and are
based on the testimony of interested witnesses.
That may be so, or it may not; but I join issue
with him when he says that the evidence of these
interested witnesses should be altogether put on
one side. I also join issue with him when he
says that if those cases were heard before a judge
it would result in improper decisions being
given. A judge would not take the evidence
on one side only; he would take the evidence on
both sides, and decide the case on its merits.
‘With regard to the Railway Arbitrator, judging
from what we know about the Corser case, L
am inclined to believe that he bases his
decisions upon what the Railway Department
wish him to award, and T am very much afraid
that that state of affairs is very prevalent at the
present time, Under existing circumstances,
and after the expression of opinion given by
the Minister for Works, I very much doubt
whether any material benefit can be derived,
owing to the position which the Railway Arbi-
trator holds to the Minister at the head of his
department, because the Dlinister for Works
appears to have arrived at some extraordinary
ideas with regard to what compensation should
be given, altogether irrespective of the nature of
the land that may be resumed. He has indi-
cated in his speech that he considers that many
claimants for compensation for land resumed
for railway purposes are actuated by a desire
to get all they can out of the Government. I
doubt that very much. I have not such alow
opinion of human nature as to imagine that
all men are actuated by that motive; and if
the arbitrator is actuated by the same motives
as the Minister for Works, 1 hardly think justice
is likely to be given to any claimant, if that is
the way in which compensation is to be awarded.
The hon. member for Logan put his complaints
and grievances in a very moderate and proper way
before the House, and I think it should have
received very different consideration from the
Minister for Works than he gave to it. How-
ever, 1 trust that at a later period of the evening,
or—as I do not see the hon. member for Mary-
borough, Mr. Annear, in his place—at a later
period of the session, we shall have an oppor-
tunity of discussing, on the Corser question, the
conduct of the Railway Arbitrator. We shall
then be able to judge for ourselves as to the
wisdom of the decision he arrived at, or other-
wise. The position which that gentleman occu-
pies at the present time is an unfortunate one—

a very unfortunate one—and I think that if he

is to be provided for at all in the Government
service it should be in some other department,
where he will not be under the immediate
control of so near a relative as the Minister for
Works,.

Mr. ADAMS said: DMr. Speaker,—I am
extremely sorry that the Minister for Warks
went out of his way to depreciate the value of
certain properties in and around Mount Perry.
He said he had not the slightest doubt that the
money that was paid for compensation there
would buy the whole of Mount Perry. I think1
showed the other day that the value of property
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at Mount Perry is very great, and I say to-day
that the value of property there has not depre-
ciated. How was it that the Government had to
pay compensation for land resumed for the
purpose of erecting the railway station and the
post and telegraph office? Some hon. members
may hot recollect the facts. A petition was sent
down from Mount Perry asking the then Govern-
ment to lay out and survey a township

Mr. LUMLEY HILL: Is there anyone
living there now?

Mr. ADAMS : That petition was not heard of
for many months, and the consequence was that
when the Government would not survey a town-
ship at once, the people who owned the adjoining
land surveyed a township called Fife Barnett,
which was sold to the inhabitants of Mount
Perry at that time; being a little nearer the
mines. The result was that when the Govern-
ment had actually surveyed their land and
offered it for sale they could not find a purchaser,
and the whole business portion of the place
was taken down to Fife DBarnett; and instead
of the Government erecting the Government
buildings on the Government township they
had to buy back land at Fife Barnett from
the then owners for that purpose. Therefore,
I do not think it is just for the hon. gentle-
man to try and depreciate property in one
place for the sake of—I hardly know what
to term it—making out a good case for the
Railway Arbitrator. I do not see because a man
owns a piece of land, and a railway is taken
there, that he should suffer because others are
enhancing the value of their property all round
him. T think everyone should be treated fairly,
and that wherever land has been resumed in this
way the owners should be not only remunerated
irrespective of the land, but also for any damage
that they may have sustained. I should not
have risen had it not been for the hon. gentleman
endeavouring to depreciate the value of property
inmy electorate. I think that if the hon. gentle-
man did not ramble about so much he would save
a great deal of valuable time in this House.

Mr. LUMLEY HILL said : Mr. Speaker,—

In reference to matters of this kind, now brought

. before the House by the hon. member for Logan

in a very temperate and moderate way, I am
inclined to think that the Government have gone
from one extreme to the other, and that in endea-
vouring to avoid Scylla they have fallen into
Charybdis. Certainly the late Government did
make most enormous awards, as, for instance, in
this very case of the value of land at Mount Perry.
I should like the Government to try and sell the
post and telegraph office there, and see what they
would get for it. I fancy you might take away the
post-office altogether; 1 do not suppose many
letters go there, and I do not think there is
much use for the 9 acres and 5 perches for
which £918 was paid --nearly £100 per acre—and
the useless refinery where the stuff was no good,
not worth working.

Mr. ADAMS: What refinery was it ?

Mr. LUMLEY HILL: Isupposeit wasa copper
refinery. Wasit? the hon. member ought to know
more about it than I do. Atany rate, there wasno
copper ; there was brass, more likely. However,
T do not know who the fortunate J. C. Smyth
was who got the money. I do not know whether
he is the gentleman who occupies a position in
another Chamber, but I fancy I know the con-
nection, and where the money went really. I
recognise that in the distance. At thesame timeT
do not see that because injustices have been per-
petrated in the past and that the taxpayers of the
colony have suffered, therefore the present Gov-
ernment are at all justified, in their ardent desire
to protect the taxpayers in inflicting injustice
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upon individuals. T think that individuals who
have got really fair and legitimate claims should
have those claims fairly and justly considered.
I do not believe that the Railway Arbitrator is in
the slightest degree competent to fulfil the office
which he has to discharge. I do not think he
knows anything at all about the business, and
he was put into that position too late in life
to learn anything of it. I look upon it as a
business that requires a thorough apprenticeship
and training; and that no man taken sud-
denly from another line of life altogether
and put into this office is capable of dis-
charging it with proper efficiency. I am quite
sure that in my private business I wounld
not entrust any of my land to him, either
for the object of purchase—or at least I should
like very much to be able to buy land at
his price. I have no doubt it would be a good
thing if one could do that. And I should sell at
my own afterwards. I do not think the country
is justified in employing him in that capacity.
He cannot be expected to give satisfaction., I
think it is unfair to the man himself to be put in
the position he is in. Nobody can have any
faith in his decisions. He has had no expe-
rience in the business, and I think the Govern-
ment ought to appoint a competent man—not
a judge; I donot think a judge would be the
very best man for the position, but some man
who has had thorough practical experience in
relation to the selling of land and valuing it—
who has been paid as a valuator. I am
thoroughly aware that valuations differ very
much, asthe Minister for Works stated ; but still
there are men in Brisbane, men in this House,
whose valuations you can rely upon to a very
fair approximate extent. At any rate, whether
their judgments are sound or not, the public
believe in them. Generally, people who are both
borrowing and lending money have faith in their
valuations, because they pay for them, and the
evidence of those men is taken as worth some-
thing. The award or appraisement of these men,
who have had experience in that line, i3 sure to
meet with a certain amount of respect, at all
events. But at present the thing is a perfect
farce. Asfar as I am personally concerned, 1
have often been twitted about being interested in
some land along the Cleveland railway line.
Well, T have been offered 1s. for 7 acres 4 roods—
something like T} acres—and I simply declined
to take it,

11X1n HoNourABLE MEMBER: It will pay very
well.

Mr. LUMLEY HILL : Ido not care whether
it will or not. I bought the land before the
railway was projected at all, and certainly I
never advocated the railway. I consider thatis
my land, and I am not going to have it taken
from me for 1s., T do not care what anybody says.
Therefore, if the railway does not go there
I shallbe quite willing to accept the fiat of the
Minister for Works and let it stop where it
js. I am not going to have my land wrested
from me, or accept 1s. for land which is
worth certainly a good deal more than that.
However, I had no intention of bringing this
matter before the House. I do not care two
pins whether the railway goes there or not. I
can keep the land or sell it, but I am not going
to submit to an injustice of that kind. I merely
adduced it as an instance of the practice that 1s
going on now, and of the sort of confiscation of
people’s property which the Government appa-
rently appear to consider they can exercise with
impunity.

Mr. DICKSON said : Mr. Speaker,—There is
no doubt that it is a very difficult matter to
arrive at such an award in the matter of pro-
perty as will satisfy the owner and also protect

.
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the State, We all know that there is a dis-
position, a tendency at any rate, on the part of
private proprietors to malke the best bargains
they can with the State. They think the State
is in a position to give them a much larger price
than they possibly would obtain from a private
individual, and therefore I feel that, to a certain
extent, the Government ought to be protected
in their transactions with privateindividuals when
they have toresume land for public purposes. But
I feel that generally, as well as in the special
cases referred to by the hon. member for Logan
this evening, the matter is one that should re-
ceive more consideration than it does from those
who are appointed by the Government to assist
or investigate such cases. I do not think it was
ever the intention of the Railway Act that pro-
pertyshould be confiscated and that the proprietor
should not receive compensation ; in fact, that
confiseation instead of compensation should ensue.
I must say, from many transactions that have
come under my notice in connection with land
resumed for railway purposes, that there does
seem to be a great tendency on the part of the
Government officer to deal with all these claims
in a rough-and-ready way, chiefly leaning towards
protecting the interests of the State, without
regard to the possible hardships that may
be inflicted upon individuals; because, Mr.
Speaker, a railway may pass through a man’s
property and very seriously injure 1t, while a
proprietor on the other side of the road may
have all the benefit of the unearned increment
which that railway confers upon the district.
Then, again, there is to be considered the
direction in which a railway may pass through
a man's property, the area of the land taken
from him, and the quality and character of it
and other matters in connection with such re-
sumption, all of which should be very carefully
taken into consideration. I must say that some
cases that I have had anopportunity of inquiring
into in connection with the Logan railway—the
one to which the hon. member referred —
showed, to my mind, great want of judgment
on the part of the Railway Arbitrator in the
award he tendered, and, indeed, I may say
that they were, in many cases, to use a mild
term, really eccentric. I do not think the
gentleman who made those awards could have
satisfied himself of the various conditions
of the properties with which he dealt, and
I believe that a very great deal of hardship
has been inflicted upon the owners of those
preperties — injustice which I do not think
any Government would desire to see committed
in connection with the construction of rail-
ways. In building railways I do not think
we ought to hold over landowners the threat
of confiscating their property if they do not
accede to the terms the Railway Department
might dictate. There is no doubt a great
deal of heartburning in regard to the manner
in which lands are valued, and without say-
ing that the award of a district court judge
would be an improvement upon the present
system, I do certainly think the Government
ought to be able to find some board of assessors—
experts—who would take the pains to inquire
into the local conditions, and thereby arrive
at more correct conclusions than have been
done up to the present time. As I have
already stated, it seems to me that the Govern-
ment officer—possibly he is, for the moment,
dressed in a little brief authority—takes too
high-handed a part in the matter and ignores
the reasonable representations of men who natu-
rally think, although the railway may be a
benefit to the district in which it is con-
structed, that they have no right to be selected
as scapegoats for the benefit of their neighbours ;
and I must say that I think the Government do




Y98 Motion for Adjournment. [ASSEMBLY.] Motion for Adjournment.

not desirethatrailway construction should proceed
in that direction. 1 think the hon. member for
Logan has done good service in mentioning these
cases, and I have no doubt that when the Rail-
way estimates come on for consideration some-
thing further will. be said upon the matter. I
comimend it to the attention of the Minister
for Works, and I think he should regard it in
a much more favourable view than he has done,
by threatening to remove the grievance by stop-
ping railway construction. To my mind that is
not the light in which this matter should be
considered. I do not think there is any occasion
for me to show much soreness in the matber,
because I believe, in common with other hon.
members, that the Government desire to do
what is just towards those who have had the
misfortune—I use the word advisedly—to have
railways eonstructed through their property. I
would like those to have the advantage, enjoyed
by others in the same district, of bhenefiting by a
railway close at hand, without having part of
their property confiscated. I trust the matter
will receive attention, and that the hon. Minister
for Works will see that the Railway Arbitrator
is instructed to tuke more fully into his considera-
tion the circumstances in connection with land
resumption for railway purposes, which may
induce him to come to more equitable decisions.

Mr. SCOTT said : Mr. Speaker,—It has been
said that the Railway Arbitrator is incompetent
to do his work. It is not for me to say whether
he is or is not; I do not express any opinion upon
the subject. The only ground, so far as T have
heard, for saying that the Railway Arbitrator is
incompetent is, that he has given lower awards
than people have claimed. A paper was called
fcr by the hon. member, Mr. Salkeld, in connec-
tion with the amounts paid for land resumption
at Southport, and I wish to call the attention of
hon. members to it. There arc columns showing
the amounts claimed by owners as compen<ation,
the amounts asscssed by the railway valuator as
compensation, and the amounts offered Ly the
Commissioner for Railways as compensation, I
will read a few of the items just as an illustra-
tion of the differences between the amount
claimed and the amount offered by the Commis-
sioner, In one case the sum claimed is £850,
and the amount offered by the Commissioner was
£602; and the Commissioner’s offer was accepted.
Inthenext £505 was claimed, and £440 wasoffered ;
the Commissioner’s offer was accepted. In the
next £230 was asked ; £220 was offered, and the
offer was accepted. In the next £1,060 was
claimed ; £0663 was offered, and the offer was
accepted. In the first case the amount claimed
was £200, and £50 was offered, and yet that offer
wasaccepted, Itsimply shows—and I particularly
call attention to the fact—that people in most
cases claim a great deal more than they think is
the value of the land, and are willing to accept a
very much smaller sum.

The MINISTER FOR LANDS (Fon.
H. Jordan) said: Mr. Speaker,—It has been
stated by several hon. members that my hon.
colleague the Minister for Works said he would
stop all railway construction unless the people
whose land was required for railway purposes
were more moderate in their demands. I
did not understand him to make this threat.
I think that some injustice has been done the
arbitrator. It has been stated, and one or two
hon. members have repeated the statement, that
he is altogether incompetent for the work which
he has been appointed to do. It is very easy to
say that any gentleman in the Government
service is incompetent, but it strikes me that
almost any gentleman of intelligence and educa-
tion, who had been many years in the colony,
and who knew something about the value of

\

land, would be competent for the duties which
this gentleman has to fulfil. T think it is very
unfair and too much to assert that he isincom-
petent for the position he occupies. I have some
sympathy with the hon. member for Logan and
with his constituents in the matter, inasmuch as
I know many of those persons personally, and
should be very sorry to think that any injus-
tice had been done. I am willing to admit
that it 1is possible that, in some of those
cases brought before the House by the hon.
member for Logan, some injustice may have
been done 3 but if so it may perhapsbe remedied.
I think, however, there is & dispczition on the part
of some persons who have been very clamorous for
railways to consider that the Government is fair
game, and that it is a grand opportunity of
getting a much larger price than they ever sup-
posed they would get before there was any pros-
pect of a railway being made. I know that even
in the Logan district the value of land has been
greatly enhanced, and was enhanced immedi-
ately it was known that the Government of the
day were favourable to the construction of a
railway in the locality; and I know that
it has been the practice in many places
for people to take into consideration the
additional value that will be given to their
land by the construction of a railway when send-
ing in their claims for compensation for the land
resumed ; but I think that is hardly fair. Very
likely a very absurd value is in some instances
placed on land resumed for railway purposes.
The hon. member for Logan said the arbitrator
stated that the land was enhanced in value, but
declined to state how or to what extent, T
should suppose that any country land within
thirty miles of the capital would be enhanced
by a railway passing through, the terminus
of which would be only a short distance from
that land, because a person putting the land
to its legitimate use—cultivating it—is thus
enabled to get his produce to market. T do
not think there should be anything like spoliation
or confiscation in the resumptions; on the other
hand, persons whose property isgreatly enhanced
in value by a railway should be moderate in their
demands, Supposing that farmers generally—
they are the class most interested in the con-
struction of railways in the country districts—
were to imitate the very moderate and excellent
example set by the owners of lands between
here and Cleveland, most of whom proffered
the land required for railway purposes as
a free gift to the Government if they could
get the railway, there would be very much
less difficulty in the matter of making railways
than there is at present. I admit that injustice
may have been done in some instances with
respect to the resumptions on the Logan railway,
and if so I hope that justice will be done In
those cases; but T am satisfied that if the people
there had acted on the principle adopted by the
persons owning land between here and Cleveland,
a very small amount would have satisfied them.
The present Government have gone into a large
railway policy, and made themselves very popular
in so doing, but an effectual obstacle will be
placed in their way if persons demand exorbitant
prices for their land. 'We are all interested in
the making of railways—making railways will
settle the country and enable us to carry out
agricuitural settlement—and T think we should
all take care to assist the Government in carrying
out their railway policy, and not put obstacles
in their wry by demanding excessive prices for
Jand required for railway purposes.

Mr. CHUBB said: Mr. Speaker,—I would
not have spoken on this matter but for a
remark of the Minister for Works, which showed
that he entirely misunderstands the functions
of the arbitrator., He told usin effect that the
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arbitrator was not to be a judge but a valuer.
That is quite contrary to the Act, because the
Act makes the arbitrator a judge—he only values
land in the sense that a judge valuesit. The
appointment of arbitrator is regulated by the 5th
section of the Act as follows :—

“ It shall be lawful for the Governor, with the advice

of the Executive Couneil, to appoint from time to time
some fit and proper person as railway arhitrator, pro-
vided thatsuch officer shall not he subject to the con-
trol or regulations of the Commiissioncr. Provided that
1o barrister or attorney shall he so appointed unl I
shall have been in practice, or have held some ju
or legal office under the Crown two years immediately
preceding such appointiment.”
That section by itself shows that the arbitrator
is a judge and not a valuer. The 106th section
provides that the arbitrator is to hear and deter-
mine the matters brought before him by the
parties themselves or their counsel or attorney,
and examine the parties and witnesses upon oath.
Then it goes on to say :—

“ Provided that the arbitrator may eall for his own
guidance such evidence of professional persons or others
as he may think fit.”

The Act as plainly as possible makes him neither
more nor less than a judge. As soon as a dispute
arises between a claimant and the Commissioner,
the mattergoes before thearbitrator, who takesthe
evidence brought before him on both sides and has
to decide between the parties. Fle may go and
look at the land—just like a judge and jury—and
if he is in doubt he may call in professional evi-
dence—the evidence of a valuer. Therefore, to
say that a judge would not be so competent as
the arbitrator is a mistake, because the arbitrator
is neither more nor less than a judge. It is only
a question as to whether you have a man
capable of giving a correct opinion on the evi-
dence brought before him. I deprecate the
remark of the hon, member for Cook, Mr, Hill,
to the effect that the late Government paid large
sums of money for compensation. If they were
large sums, they were sums awarded by the
arbitrator, a judicial officer appointed by the
State ; and the Government had no option but
to pay them, any more than the present Govern-
ment has in regard to any award made by the
present arbitrator. It has been said that the
late arbitrator was extravagant, and the pre-
sent arbitrator is parsimonious; but we have
not been in the position of these gentlemen,
and do not know how they have decided. Tt
may be that the present arbitrator takes an
extreme view in the cases brought before him.
But the main point is this: When the arbi-
trator males up his award he has first of all
to value the land resumed, then add to that a
sum for damage, either by severance or other
injury to the property ; from that he has to take
the value by which the land has been enhanced
by making the railway through the land. At
the same time, all the adjoining owners through
whose land the railway does not go may partici-
pate in the enhancement, though they give
nothing towards it; so that the owner whose
Iand is resumed is punished twice over. I
daresay that whenit is understood that a rail-
way is going to be made in a particular district
the price of land goes up, but I do not think that
in the particular cases mentioned by the hon.
member for Logan the prices asked were exorbi-
tant. The Minister for Lands is advertising a
land sale ten or twelve miles from Brisbane--
some flat, marshy land towards the sea-shore
—land which can only be used for agricul-
tural purposes—and he is asking £16 per acre.
The Government are taking advantage of the
increased value of land, and they cannot in fair-
ness object to pay fair prices to persons whose
land they resume for railway purposes. I think
the hon. member has made out a very good case for
reconsideration of those awards. The arbitrator
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may have made a mistake. I would not say
he has wilfully done wrong, but the system
is bad. T would like to point out that one
of the courts in the colony which gives most
satisfaction is the appeal court on the goldfields,
where the district court judge sits generally
with two competent miners as assessors—imen
who understand the case. Those decisions are
generally very satisfactory to the persons in-
terested. There is no reason why an alteration
should not be made whereby the arbitrator could
call in as assessors two persons with special
knowledge of the value in particular cases. The
Admiralty Judges in England have the assistance
of two nautical men, and other tribunals are
framed on the same system. When you have a
man skilled in weighing evidencs and deciding
between conflicting testimony, aided by technical
knowledge, then you have & very good tribunal ;
and something of the same kind night be applied
to railway arbitration. Tt must not be for-
gotten that the railway policy of the present
Government, and probably of fnture Govern-
ments, is of a very large character, and there is a
great deal more railway-making now than there
was twenty years ago, when the first arbitrator
was appointed. The work has increased a hun-
dredfold, and will probably increase to a greater
extent ; so that the present system might very
well be considered, and, I think, amended in
some particulars.

Mr. BUCKLAND said: Mr., Speaker,—I
am very glad the hon. member for Logan has
brought this matter betore the House. I have
had some experience of the arbitration court,
having attended there two or three timesmyself,
and T quite agree with what has fallen from the
hon. member. I do not blame Mr. Thompson,
but T do not consider that he has the knowledge
to form the fair and reasonable conclusion which
everyone expects from a gentleman occupying his
position. The hon. Minister for Works spoke
as if the value of the land was the only
item to be considered in making a claim for
resumption ; but there are other things to
e taken into account — severance, damage,
consequential damage, and many others. For
instance, if you get an occupation crossing
allowed to take across your stock or your
produce, there is a penalty attached if you fail to
keep the gate closed and locked,and in many cases
where farms are severed in this way there is a
great increase in the expense of working. If I
gave this House the capital value of some of the
land which the Minister for Works has endea-
voured to depreciate in this very district referred
to by the hon. member for Logan, I should
astonish hon. members. I am nob going to do it,
but I conld proveit by returns. The hon. member
for Cook, Mr. Lumley Hill, has referred to cases
where 1s. has been offered. I know of one
instance where a family was getting a living out
of a dairy farm, and the raillway cut them off
from permanent water. To get that water for
domestic purposes or for the use of their stock
they had to go fully hai{-a-mile, and yet 1s. only
was offered as compensation. I am happy to say
that when the matter - -as put fairly before the
Commissioner the award was increased con-
siderably, because 1s. was absurd.

Mr., ALAND : Was not that a general circular
sent to all the landowners ?

Mr. BUCKLAND: Yes, it was ; and I may
state to this House that in answer to that
circular upwards of seventeen and a-half miles
of land was got for the nominal sum of 1s. on that
railway. The balance will be paid for by valua-
tion. Now, sir, there are claims that arise—and
I am convinced that Mr. Thompson cannot see
the cases—where farms are severed and water is
cut off from grazing land, so that stock has
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to be crossed at an occupation gate night and
morning to get water. Surely a claim arises there.
In making a valuation I have always put in such
a claim, and shall in the future, but I find it is
always very difficult to get any consideration for
that claim. Reference has been made to the
enhanced value of land in the district more par-
ticularly referred to, but I can assure this House
that the value of land in that district during the
last two years is not as good as it was at the time
I speak of—two years ago. You cannot get any-
thing like the value unless it is the very best
serub land that will grow lucerne, Of course, that
is not the fault of the railway. I thinkthesystem
under the Public Works Lands Resumption Act,
which has been referred to, would be a far
more reasonable way of arriving at a conclusion
on these claims for railway resumption. I know
several families who have worked hard to get a
homestead around them, and then the railway has
come and depreciated the value of their property.
I do not think it is fair that when a railway goes
through a man’s property he should have to
suffer all the damage, while his neighbour, whois
not touched, receives all the benefit. I could refer
to cases in the neighbourhood of the Logan, but
as they are not yet settled I shall not bring
them before the House. The cases referred to
by the hon. member for Leichhardt were settled,
not before the arbitrator, but before the Com-
missioner, and I should advise anyone who has a
claim to have it settled, if possible, before the
Commissioner, because I am sure that gentleman
would take a much more sensible and a broader
view of thecase than thepresent Railway Avbitra-
tor. I have nothing to say against the arbitrator
personally, but I do not think he is fit for the
position he occupies.

Mr. GRIMES said : Mr. Speaker,—I think
the individuals in whose interests the hon. mem-
ber for Logan has introduced this matter have
genuine grievances, and I am very sorry that the
hon. member for Logan, after bringing up the
matter in such a moderate straightforward way,
should have been met as he has been met by the
hon. Minister for Works this evening. Iecannot
see that it is the duty of the Minister, in stand-
ing by the appointment he has made to that
office, to deal so harshly with those who mention
grievances in this House.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS : I did not
make the appointment.

Mr, GRIMES: I have seen some of the awards
and the claims sent in by the owners of the
properties in the return that has been laid on the
table of the House. I think that the claims sent
in were very moderate in most instances, and
that they certainly should have been met ina
very different way from that in which they were
met. It is very little use for any person to bring
a claim before the arbiteator if the arbitrator is
not to be guided in some measure by the evi-
dence set before him. The Minister for Works
claims that the arbitrator should use his own
judgment. Possibly he should to a certain extent,
but he should not set up his judgment against all
the evidence that has been adduced in the case.
I think that any hon. member who reads the
evidence that has been given in many of the
cases which have been brought under our notice
this afternoon will see that the arbitrator gave
an award directly contrary to the evidence. The
Minister for Works contends that the evidence
of persons who own land in a district where
resumptions have been made should not be
taken in valuing the land. I cannot agree with
him in that opinion. ¥or instance, in the case of
farming land, who should be a bhetter judge
of ity value than a farmer? A commission
agent or valuator in Brisbane is not able to
value a farm properly; they have very little
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idea as to what can be returned from a
certain portion of land resumed from a farm.
Mention has been made this afternoon of one
farm in the district of Coomera. I know that
farm very well, and T can bear out the statement
made by the hon. member for Liogan with respect
to it. It is a very highly cultivated farm, one of
the best in the district. 1 have seen the damage
dene to that farm by the railway works, and I
can say that what was paid to the claimant in
that instance is under the value of the land,
setting aside altogether the damage done to the
farm by severance. The land is all cleared, and
1 believe a good portion was laid down in lucerne.
I can state, from my own knowledge of the
expense of clearing land of that character, that
it could not have been cleared for less than £15
or £18 an acre, yet all that has been paid to him
for severance and everything, is something like
£20 an acre. At the same time land near that
property, uncleared, unfenced, and unimproved
in any way, is in demand at from £10 to £14 an
acre. 1 know a piece of land there of some tifty
or sixty acres for which £10 an acre has been
refused. The railway goes through the best por-
tion of Mr. Oxenford’s farm in a diagonal direc-
tion, leaving a three-cornered piece of about
twelve acres, as far as my memory serves me,
which is an awkward piece for any farmer to cul-
tivate. Every time he ploughs he has a deal of
lost time, having short turnstogo with his plough,
and he cannot lay out his crops as he could
if the land had been in its ordinary state. Again,
the resumption is not simply a piece of land a
chain wide through the farm; the department
have taken three chains. An embankment was
required there, and as there was not soil enough
to make it the department took three chains
wide, using two chains out of three for the
purpose of getting soil for the embankment.
That has thoroughly ruined the farm. I consider
from my knowledge of farming that Mr, Oxen-
ford would not have been wmore than fairly com-
pensated if he received £400 for the damage done.
‘We must bear in mind that when a man takes a
farm and settles upon it he does so with the idea
of making it his home ; he calculates the amount
of improvements required for working that farm
properly, and very likely spends £800 or £1,000
in improvements on a farm of the area of that
now under consideration. And if there is taken
from him a large portion of his arable land, that
diminishes the value of the whole of the improve-
ments on the land, because he has not the full
use of the improvements. I know another case
down on the Logan where the claim sent in was
most moderate. Nevertheless that claim has, I
am told, been rejected, and a very much smaller
sum than that asked has been offered by the
department. Tt is the case of a sugar plantation,
and the line passes right through it. Hon.
members who know anything about growing
sugar know very well that a plant for making
sugar cannot be put up for less than about £30
an acre for the area of land cultivated. A
person is obliged to have that plant and machinery
for taking off the crop and converting it into
sugar ; and if the Government resume a portion
of the land for the working of wlich the neces-
sary machinery is provided, a serious loss is
inflicted on the proprietor as long as he occupies
the place, because he has a larger mill than he
needs for the area under cultivation. That is a
matter which is not taken into consideration by
the arbitrator in his awards. I believe that the
claims sent in for damage done to farms and
sugar plantations is very often far below what
the real damage is. 1 see no hope of doing
away with these constant complaints about
arbitration cases until there is a reform in the
system itself. 1 look upon it as a bad system,
seeing that a single individual is able under it to
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make an award from which there is no appeal
unless the amount is over £500, Why should
not a person whose claim is under £500 have the
right of appeal? Why should not a man who is
awarded £300, or £10, if he feels that an in-
justice has been done him, have the right to
appeal from the award of that one individual?
I see no reason why claimants for small amounts
should not be allowed to appeal from the arbi-
trator to the district court; or in the case of
very small sums, to a court of petty sessions. I
believe that in all cases over £500 there is the
right of appeal to the Supreme Court. Ithink
it is unfair to those who have their lands foreibly
taken away from them for railway purposes that
they should have to submit to the dictum of one
individual, whose judgment is very often warped.
T am glad that the hon. member for Logan has
introduced this matter; it is high time it was
introduced, and that some alteration was made
in the system of arbitration.

Mr. PALMER said: Mr. Speaker,—If this
discussion on land resumed for railway purposes
only shows the Government the necessity of
having as many railway surveys carried out as
possible, wherever railways are likely to be
made, in order that they may resume land and
save this enormous expense that is going on, it
will have done some good. I notice, at page 83
of the report of the Commissioner for Railways,
that there has been paid away in the southern
part of Queensland, for land resumed for rail-
way purposes alone, up to the end of 1886, no
less a sum than £231,477. And that enormous
expenditure is still going on. Now that the
country is being opened up, and railways are
being asked for in every direction, it should be the
first duty of the Government to see that the land
on all the possible routes is surveyed, and it will
be found that the expense of the survey parties
now will prove to be economy in years to come.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN said : Mr.
Spealcer,—This discussion will be useless unless
there is some practical suggestion made. No one
can blame the Government for what the arbi-
trator does if he acts according to the law. His
duties are clearly laid down by the Act of 1872,
which was read by the hon., member for Bowen,
and in another Act which was passed in 1880,
when the late Government was in office. By
these two Acts his conduct is entirely regulated,
so that whatever blame is attached to him for
not giving full compensation for land reswumed is
the fault of the system, not of the Government,
because the arbitrator must follow the law. Up
to the time the late Government took office the
complaints were all on the other side. The
complaints then were that people got too much
for their land—that they first petitioned to
have a railway made, and as soon as they got
the land resumed they put in absurd claims for
compensation for land taken up. In one par-
ticular instance of a raliway there was as much
paid for compensation as we make railways for
now. Between £2,000 and £3,000 a mile was
paid for compensation between Brisbane and
Ipswich, and we have made railways since then
for that sum. Therefore, when the late Govern-
ment came into office a law was introduced by
which the proceedings of the Railway Arbitrator
are regulated. If he has gone to the other extreme
in enforcing this law he has made a wmistake.
But no good can come out of this discussion
unless there is some alteration made in the law,
The 8th section of the Act of 1830 says that—

¢ Bvery award made by the railway arbigrator shall
set forth separately—

“(1.) The amount of damage found by him to be sus-
tained by the owner or party interested in the land
taken, used, or temporarily oceupied for the purpose of
the railway or tramway, or injuriously affected by the
construction thereof,

1887—3 0

“(2.) The amonnt hy which the value of otherland of

silch person or party is enhanced by the construetion of
the railway or tramway.’”
It always happened, before this Act became law,
that when a man had alarge quantity of land, or
several small parcels of land, and the Railway
Commissioner resumed a certain portion of it,
the Railway Commissioner had to pay a very large
price for the land resumed, but there was no
account taken of the enhanced value which the
making of the railway gave to the land which the
man held beyond the resumed part. Therefore
this 2nd subsection was introduced. And it
may happen that some of the cases mentioned by
the hon. member for Logan may be explained in
that way ; the owners of the resumed land may,
perhaps, have had other land which the making
of the railway will enhance in value, and the
Railway Arbitrator has taken account of it, as he
was bound to do. The clause continues :—

“(3.) The amount by which the value of the land
injuriounsly affected is enhanced in other respects by such
eonstruetion.

“{L) The netamount of compensation payable to such

owner or party.”
I take it, that if we are going to do away with
complaints, either from the Government that
they are being absurdly fleeced hy claimants
for compensation for land resumed for railways
or from people that they have been unjustly
dealt with by the Railway Arbitrator, we must
alter the whole system of the law. When a
railway is made through a district it does not
merely enhance the value of the land of the man
who loses a certain portion—it enhances the
value of the land on each side of it to a certain
extent ; and I therefore think that if we are
going to alter the law, it should be done in the
direction that all lands which are enhanced in
value should be rated at a certain amount, and out
of the moneys derived trom that source payments
should be made in compensation to those who
lose by the making of railways. By that means
the people would be dealt with fairly, and the
Government would lose nothing. Any altera-
tion of the law should be somewhat in that
direction. This is not a new question. It was
brought before the House some years ago by
myself and others, and I think that if it were
carried out we should hear no more of those
complaints which were made, and properly
made, by the hon. member for Logan; nor of
the complaints which were made formerly by the
Government, that the Government were robbed
by people making absurd claims.

Mr. ISAMBERT said : Mr. Speaker,—Com-
plaints have been rife for a considerable time
with regard to awards for; compensation made
by the present Railway Arbitrator; and the hon.
member for Logan is to be praised for bringing
those complaints before the House, in order that
we may have the matter thoroughly ventilated.
I am not acquainted with the particular cases
under notice ; but from what has come within my
own personal knowledge, I am convinced that
the whole system is founded on a wrong basis,
In one particular case which T watched, the Rail-
way Arbitrator seemed to act as agent for the
Government, and set aside all evidence. The
case T refer to is that of Mr, Hartmann, of
Toowoomba. A greater wrong could not be
done to anyone than was done to him. So much
was that the case, that whenever people are
threatened to have their land resumed, they
wish that the line may not go through it, because
invariably they come off second-best. They
would rather accept any offer they can get than
have their case brought before the arbitrator.
But the greatest wrong is, that in all cases where
the award is below £500, there is no appeal
possible, It is simply a law for the rich
and not for the poor. As I said, evidence
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has bheen deliberately set aside, and sums
have been awarded as compensation far below
what was offered for the land years ago.
The hon. member for Townsville indicated the
right way in which this could be altered. Cer-
tainly the Government are obliged to guard the
Treasury against exorbitant demands, but why
should those who own such lands suffer for the
enhancement of the value of land all round? The
best way to get over this difficulty would be to
make all land affected in value—say, from one
to two miles on each side—pay a certain rate
towards compensation, and let all persons affected
by the resumption, as wellas by the railway rate,
together appoint one assessor or valuator, and the
Government appoint another, and I would appoint
a Supreme Court judge umpire in case these two
could not agree, There would be some justice in
that. I have had some experience of railway
resumptions in the old country, Germany and
Prussia, which is considered a very autocratic
country; but I can assure you, Mr. Speaker, that
such star chamber arbitrary proceedings as we
have here would not be suffered there for one
moment., There is far more justice meted out
in connection with railway resumptions there
than in this colony.

Mr. MOREHEAD: No, no!

The PREMIER said: Mr. Speaker,—I am
afraid we are drifting back to the state of things
that existed before 1872, when a Bill was brought
in by Mr. Walsh, then Minister for Works in
Sir Arthur Palmer’s Government, on the sub-
jeet. At that time claims for resumption were
assessed by the ordinary process of arbitration,
and the Bill was to provide for the appointment
of a single arbitrator who would not be an advo-
cate for either party. That Bill was opposed on
the ground that the old arbitration system was
a better one; and so it was for the claimant,
I believe. When the Public Works Resumption
Act of 1878 was brought in the result of the
Act of 1872 had already been to cut down
and reduce exorbitant claims so much that
a number of people said they would stand it no
Jonger. They insisted upon going back to the
old arbitration system. Under that system the
public Treasury was fleeced to a great extent,
consciously or unconsciously. There seems to be
an irresistible inclination on the part of people
who are dealing with the Government to try and
get as much out of them as possible. T think we
shall see inafewdays a very admirableillustration
of the way in which this is carried on. A man
bought a whole property for £3,000 after notice
of resumption, and then when a small fraction in
a corner of it was wanted for railway purposes he
sent in a claim for £3,000. That is the sort of
thing that is often done, and then they appeal to
the House to give them the money.

That is the un-

An HONOURABLE MEMBER :
earned increment.

The PREMIER : He bought the property
after notice of resumption—at least after it was
known that the railway was to be made, whether
formal notice had been given or not. And in these
cases the hon. member for Logan says he must
appeal to this House. I do not think this House
is a good tribunal to deal with matters of this
kind. T quite agree that the law should be
altered, and altered in a good many respects.
In one particular I think a very useful alteration
might be made. That is, that in the case of a
proposed line of railway the Government should
be able to make a valuation and give notice of
resumptions without being bound to take the
land, as I believe they are bound to do when
they have once given notice; and that if they
found the claims too great they should not
be bound to go on with the construction of
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the line. Under the present system people
clamour for railways, and as soon as notice of
resuuption is given, they send in such claims
that it is difficult for the Governnent to construct
the line at all, T believe the present Railway
Act is, on the whole, a good one, if the arbitra-
tor does his duty in accordance with what is
there Jaid down. Another very useful alteration
is that just suggested by the hon. member for
Rosewood. T hear it was suggested before that
by the hon. member for Townsville, and it is
something like one he proposed some years
ago. I believe that system could be carried
out easily enough by adopting the scheme
we adopted in the Agricultural Drainage Act,
by which those who derive the benefit of the
work are made to bear to the cost. I think
the same thing might be done in connection
with our railways. I do not think we should
then have so many demands for railways., A
good many people would want to know what
they would have to pay before they clamoured
for a railway. I an sure it would be possible
to adopt those two amendments in the law,
They are perfectly reasonable in themselves.
The alteration would relieve the Treasury of a
considerable burden, and would do injustice to
nobody.

Mr, SALKELD said: Mr. Speaker,—I am
glad to hear from the hon. the Premier that
there is a probability of something being done
in the direction he has indicated. T donot know
that there is any good in a discussion of this
kind, except it leads to an alteration of the law
as it stands ab present. I believe hon. members
know of many cases in which people have not
been rightly dealt with under the present system.
T myself know several cases of apparent hardship,
but as they are to come before the Railway
Arbitrator I shall not refer to them now.
But T would point out that there is a wide-
spread fesling of distrust and dissatisfaction
with the manner in which railway arbitration
is conducted at present. In fact, many people
prefer, rather than to go arbitration, to accept
whatever the Commissioner offers them. In
cases of small amount they have no alternative
but to accept what the Railway Arbitrator
awards them, and in several cases I know he has
awarded less than the Commissioner had offered.
In one case he awarded nothing at all, although
the Commissioner had offered to give something.
T do.not know the Railway Arbitrator ; I never
saw bhim in my life to my knowledge, but I
have heard a great number of serious complaints
as to his decisions, Of course, I am not in
a position to say whether they are just or not,
but T feel persuaded that some of them are.
Another matter bearing, perhaps, on this subject
is this: A great deal of damage is sometimes
done to property, not only by the land being
taken away, but by roads being closed, and the
only means of access to land available for build-
ing sites being railway gates. It would be far
cheaper in the long run and in every way
for the Railway Department to construct over-
road bridges in such cases. It would save the
cost of gates, the gatekeeper’s cottage, and also
the expense of keeping a gatekeeper there for
ever. I know some cases where a perfect hard-
ship has been done in that way, The land is
valuable almost entirely for building sites, and
was bought for that purpose, but in consequence
of people having to go through railway gates and
over a level crossing, they prefer to pay a fair and
proper rent in some other place where they would
not have the anxiety and fear of accidents occur-
ring. I think such cases deserve consideration.
I shall be very glad to see a Bill brought in
embodying the amendments that have been
suggested ; and if this debate results in that it
will not have been in vain,
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Mr. KELLETT said: Mr. Speaker,—I am
glad to hear this matter hrought up again, and
hope that it will be the means of doing some
good. T was not present when the hon, member
for Logan stated the cases he knew of, but
about this time last year I brought forward
one or two cases that were, to my mind,
as glaring cases of incapacity as, I think,
any man could be guilty of. I do not know
this Railway Arbitrator—I have never seen
him; but I had full particulars of the two
cases 1 brought up, and they were not denied
in any way. I have no doubt that the man
thoroughly neglected his work. If hehad wished
to learn his duty, he could have done so by the
evidence he has obtained ; he has not done
g0, and the same thing is going on now. What
T said then, and what hon. members may say
now, will not be of any benefit. No matter what
hon. mewmbersnay say or bring before this House,
no notice is taken of it. 1t is waste of time
bringing up these matters, Tast session it was as
plain as possible to me, and this evening hon.
members have all agreed that this man is
incapable for the work and does not act in a fair
and impartial way. No man who hag had any
dealing with him says that he acts fairly. If it
were only one or two who said so, it is possible
that they might be mistaken or led away ; but
all hon. members ave of the same opinion—they
say the man is unfit for his work. I am per-
fectly satisfied that he does not know anything
about the valuation of land, and, what is more,
he will not learn.

Mr. STEVENS, in reply, said : Mr. Speaker,
—I shall not take up much of the time of the
House in replying, chiefly because the Minister
for Works has given me nothing to reply to.
‘What I have to complain of on the part of
the Government this evening is that they have
taken no trouble, either by looking through
papers or by any other means, to ascertaln
whether the statements I have made are correct
or not—whether the men T have referred to have
been hardly treated or not. Now, the Minister
for Lands said that in many cases throughout the
country, properties have been purchased hy cer-
tain parties as soon as it wasknown that the land
would be required for a railway, and then largely
increased the value attached to them. In all
the cases I have mentioned, the land had
been bought long before the land along the line
of railway was resumed, and in many cases years
before it was even anticipated there would be a
line of railway through that part of the country,
The hon. member for Leickhardt, Mr. Scott,
referred to some cases at Southport, in which
the claimants had accepted the offers of the
Commissioner for Railways, and that the
amounts offered were much smaller than the
amounts claimed. The hon. member said that
proved that the amounts asked were exorbitant,
but it proved nothing of the kind. Tt proves this,
to my mind, and to those who knowanything about
the cases, that the claimants accepted sums of
money, knowing very wellthat it wasutterly useless
trying to get any more. Others are so disgusted
at the treatment they have met with that they
will not accept the award of the Railway Arhi-
trator. Some hon. members misunderstood me
when I referred to the judge. T did not say, or
T did not intend to say, that a judge should be
appointed arbitrator. 1 believe I said what T
meant to say, and that was, that I believed the
man who_is appointed arbitrator requires the
same qualifications as a jnudge. He should be
able to sift evidence and retain what is good, and
leave out that which is worthless, and be able to
arrive at an impartial decision as regards the
cases before him. Of course, someone has to
suffer in these resumptions for railway purposes,
and it is very hard that the owners of land should
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be compelled to suffer for the general advantage
of the district. Taking it upon the broad ground
that these railways are constituted for the general
good of the colony, fair amounts for compensa-
tion should be paid to claimants by the country
generally. Railways are constructed for the
benefit of a district, and the persons who lose
their land should be paid a fair price for it by the
district. In setting forth my case this afternoon I
purposelykeptbackallkindsof sentimentorcolour-
ing, and put it as calmly as I could before the
House, so that I should not be accused of having
made extraordinary statements. DBut I must
admit that T was rather surprised at the way in
which the hon. Minister for Works replied, when
he inferred that the claimants in these cases,
with myself as connected with them, were out-
rageous robbers. That was the impression con-
veyed to my mind. He did not state that these
cases were all bad eases, and he did not defend
his arbitrator on any fair ground ; but he built
up some specious case about an ironbark ridge
not worth £3 10s. per acre, and that is the
reason why all these men’s claims are wrong,
here is mno argument in that. Although
the hon. Minister for Works denied having
made any statement in regard to stopping rail-
ways, he conveyed the impression to the mind of
every hon. member that he would stop these
claims all through the country by stopping all
the railway works., The hon. gentleman has
known for some time that I intended to bring this
matter before the House, because I told him so
not later than yesterday. T told him that I was
going to bring it up this afternoon, in order that he
might have an opportunity of conferring with his
arbitrator, and of luoking up papers, so that he
might have a defence. Perhaps the withdrawal
of the men from the trial survey to the
Tweed had something to do with the stop-
ping of railway works in the districts where
they are not satisfied with the awards of the
Railway Arbitrator. It may be that or it may
be something else.  When the hon. gentleman
was appointed Minister for Works he cut down
the staff in all directions—dismissed surveyors
and other officers—and then, finding a general
election approaching, and that some district
which had been badly used for years past, and
had had a railway dangled under its nose for years,
must be satisfied, he transfers the surveyors from
the survey of a more important line—one that
we know will not be a first-class paying line
until it is continued—to some other district.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: It was
done before I took the office.

Mr. STEVENS: These men were not re-
moved before you took the office.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: They ought
to have been, at all events.

Mr. STEVENS: It suggests itself in this
light to my mind: that the hon. gentleman
finds the electors of Cleveland are not at all
satisfied with the way in which they have been
treated, and at the last moment he sends
surveyors to try to pacify them in some way.
Then it is quite possible that the surveyors will
be sent to survey some other line. Thetwo lines
have been dangled before the electors of Cleve-
land for three or four years, and now, perhaps,
there is to be another line. To do this the
Government take the surveyors away from a line
which the late Minister for Works said, over and
over again, he regarded as being one of the best
paying lines in Queensland, and that he expected
that within twelve months from the time it was
completed, there would be a dozen trains a day
running on it. The present Minister for Works,
for the reasons I have intimated, perhaps, means
this as part of the intimidation.

The PREMIER : Nonsense !
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Mr. STEVENS : It is very little use the
Premier saying ‘ Nonsense,” when the hon.
Minister for Works has threatened that he
would cease the construction of the Togan line.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I did not.

Mr. STEVENS: The hon. gentleman said if
he had his way he would stop these claims by
stopping railway construction. Those ave not
his exact words, but that is the gist of what
the hon. gentleman said. If he thinks T am
to be deterred from bringing the cases of
any of my constituents or anything of
general interest to the colony before the House
by any threat of that sort, he is mistaken.
I do not think T was ever driven in that direction
in my life; and I am not going to commence
now. The cases I have referred to will stand
on their own bottom ; they do not require any
further argument from me. I have been pleased,
and so will the unfortunate sufferers, at the
warm way in which their case has been taken
up this afternoon. I think the debate will
cause a change in the law, and that wasmy chief
object. I knew I could obtain no redress at the
present time for these unfortunate men, but T
hope there will be a speedy change in the law;
so that if sufferers at the present time get no
redress a great deal of suffering may be pre-
vented in the future.

Errcrorar DistricTs Brir.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY (Hon. B. B.
Moreton) said: Mr. Speaker,—I take this
opportunity of drawing the attention of the hon.
member for Northern Downs to some remarks
he made last night in speaking on the Electoral
Districts Bill. He is reported to have said :—

“Jle might mention that Burrandowan, Hawkwood,

and the Auburn, and all that part of the Burnett were
anxious to be attached to the Northern Downs elec-
torate. They sent in a petition to that ¢ffect some time
ago.”
‘When he made that remark I thought he had
fallen into an error, because if such a petition
had been sent in I should have heard some-
thing about it. After the debate was over I
saw two gentlemen from the district he referred
to and they said that no petition had ever been
got up for that purpose. I therefore wish to ask
the hon. member whether those are the words he
meant to use last night ?

Mr. NELSON said: Mr. Speaker,—TI am very
much obliged to the Colonial Secretary for
drawing attention to this matter, which I
should have done myself if he had not. The
whole matter was a mere slip of the tongue,
and I did make the mistake to which he
refers; but it does not alter the effect of the
argument I was using. I was attempting to
show that this part of the Burnett was natu-
rally connected with Northern Downs, and in
order to prove that, I intended to state that a
petition had been sent in asking that the district
should be joined to the Wambo Division ; but by
mistake I used the words ‘“ Northern Downs
electorate” instead of ¢ Wambo Division.” The
argument remains good, as showing that the
interests of the two districts are identical. I am
sure that none of the Colonial Secretary’s con-
stituents wish him to cease to represent them,
and it would be highly improbable that those
people would petition to be joined to an elec-
torate which was about to be extinguished.

Question put and negatived.

LADY BOWEN HOSPITAL LAND SALE
BILL.

PrrMISSION TO0 EXAMINE A MEMBER OF THE
LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL.
Mr. W, BROOKES said: Mr. Speaker,—
With the permission of the House I should like
to move a formal motion in reference to a

message to the Legislative Council asking per-
mission for the select committee of this House
on this Bill to examine a member of the other
House. I move that the following message be
sent to the Legislative Council :—

““ MR. PRESIDENT,

“The Legislative Assembly having appointed a
select cominittee to consider and report upon the Lady
Bowen Lying-in HHoapital Land Sale Bill, and that com-
mittee being desirons to examine the Ifon. J. 8. Turnerin
reference thereto, beg to request that the Legislative
Council will give leave to their said member to attend
accordingly on such day and days as shall be arranged
between him and the said Committee.”

I do not think the House will offer any oppo-
sition to that, Mr, Speaker.

Question put and passed.

MESSAGES FROM THE LEGISLATIVE
COUNCIL.

The SPEAKER said: I have to report to the
House that T have received the following mes-
sages from the Legislative Council ;—

DivisioNAL Boarps BILL.
“MR. SPEAKER,

“The Legislative Council have this day agreed to a
Bill intituled ¢ A Bill to consolidateand amend the laws
relating to loéal government outside the boundaries
of municipalities,” with the amendments indicated by
the accompanying schedule, in which amendments the
Legislative Council requests the concurrence of the
Legislative Assembly.

“A. H. PATMER,
*“ President.
“ Legislative Council Chamber,
“29th September, 1887,

The PREMIER said ;: Mr. Speaker,—I move
that the message be taken into consideration
to-morrow,

Question put and passed.

BUNDABERG ScHOOL OF ArTs LanND SALE Birn,
“MR. SPEAKER,

“The Legislative Council having this day agreed to
a Bill intituled ‘A Bill to ecnable the trustees of three
allotinents of land in the town of Bundaberg, granted
for the pwrposes of a school of arts, to sell or mortgage
the same or any part or portion thereof, together with
the buildings erected thereon, and to devote the pro-
ceeds to the bhuilding of a new school of arts,’ beg now
to return the same to the Legislative Assembly without
amenduent,

“A. II. PALMER,
“President.
“TLegislative Couneil Chambers,
‘ 29th September, 1887.

VALUATION BILL.

“MR. SPEAKER,

“The TLegislative Council having had under con-
sideration the message of the Legislative Assembly
relative to the amendment made by the Legislative
Council in the Valuation Bill, beg now to intimate that
they agree to the amendments made by the Legislative
Assembly on their amendment.

“A, II. PALMER,
“President.
“ Legislative Council Chambers,
< 20th September, 1887.”

REPORT OF REFRESHMENT ROOMS
COMMITTEE.

On notice of motion No, 8 being called—

“Mr. Black to move,—That the report of the Refresh-
ment Rooms Committee be adopted ”’—

Mr. ALAND said : Mr. Speaker,—1 called
out ““Not formal ” just now when you called
this motion, because the hon. member for
Mackay was not present, and I know he wants to
make some alteration, with the consent of the
House, in the recommmendations of the committee,
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The SPEAKER : The hon. member isnot in

order in making any remarks.

Mr. ALAND : T merely wish to explain why
I would ask the House to postpone the motion
until to-morrow. 1 want to explain my position
to the House. Mr. Black has not authorised me
to act on his behalf, but as one of the members
of the Refreshment Rooms Committee T know
he wanted to go on with the matter this after-
noon.

Mr. NORTON : Do you want to postpone it
i1l to-morrow ?

Mr. ALAND : My. Black has not asked me
todoso; but I will give a fresh notice in his
name for to-morrow.

SUPPLY.

On the motion of the PREMIER, the Speaker
left the chair, and the House resolved itself into a
Committee of the Whole to further consider the
Supply to be granted to Her Majesty.

MARINE FORCE.

The PREMIER, inmoving that therehegranted
a sum of £12,541 for salaries and contingencies in
connection with the Marine Force, sald there
was an additional drill instructor on the st&tf, and
there was a small inerease of £105 for rations on
the “ Gayundah.” Under the heading *‘Naval
Brigade” there was a considerable increase —
ﬁfty -four—in the number of men, but there was a
diminution in the amount asked for in conse-
sequence of the reduction of the number of
days on which it was proposed to call the

men out.  The whole vote was nearly the
same as last year, Tle would be glad to
give any information hon. members w1shed

to obtain. There were two companies of
the Naval Brigade in Brisbane with 2 officers
and 100 men; Rockhampton, 3 officers and 50
men ; Maryborough, 8 officers and 50 men;
Townsville, 3 officers and 50 men; and it was
proposed to make provision for a_company at
Cooktown, and a company at Cairns. The
Naval Bmgade contained a particularly good
class of men, who did their work very well in
every place where a company was established.

Mr. NORTON said that during last session
they had been informed that the colonial gunboat
““Gayundah ” had been allowed to fly the white
ensign, and they were led to believe that there
was sonie great advantage to be derived from
that. Since the prorogation of Parliament some
difficulty had taken place between one of the
officers of the ““Gayundah” and some tradesmen
of Brisbane, and he thought the matter was one
which ought to be looked into in the interests
of tradespeople. As far as he recollected the
affair, the officer of the law was prevented from
going on board to serve an execution on that
officer—he thought it was a bailif who was
sent after him. At any rate he knew that as
the hoat went from the shore on one side,
the officer saw it coming, and slipped out on
the other side of the vessel in another boat,
and made over to South Brisbane, Having
arrived there, he made off up the street, and was
followed by the bailiff, or whoever he was, and a
long chase ensued, in which the officer of the law
eventually won. That was an Important matter.

The PREMIER : When was this ?

Mr. NORTON said be thought it had occurred
during the recess. The hon. gentleman might
have been in Xngland when it happened, but the
hon, member for Enoggera would remember the
circumstances, After that had occurred, the
tradesmen took some action, and they found
that they were unable to do anything, because
the vessel was flying the white ensign, and
consequently they could not hoard the vessel,
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He did not know how the whole affair was
settled, but he was quite sure the hon. member
for Enoggera could give them some information,
as the Premier was not aware of the fact. It
had created a great deal of scandal, and was a
disgrace to the colony, and not only that, but
it was a great injustice to the tradespeople.
thought the officer was Lieutenant esketh, a.nd
that after he had run up bills hiscreditors were not
able to get at him. There had, he believed, been
a court-martial held, and the officer had been dis-
missed; if the Premier had not heard of the affair
before, it was quite time he should do so. He
had mentioned the matter, as he wished to know
whether the white ensign protected debtors who
happened to be employed on the vessel from the
law, because if it did it was very undesirable
that the vessel should fly it.

The PREMIER said he had never heard of
the affair before. He had thought that he had

_ read all the Brisbane papers while he was away.

Mr. NORTON : You must have missed one.

The PREMIER said he had never heard of
the incident, but he was quite safe in saying that
the white ensign did not protect officers from the
law.

Mr. NORTON : It seems to do so.

The PREMIER said it did not, and if any
officer of the “ Gayundah,” which was a Queens-
land ship, attempted to make wuse of such
privilege, he would very soon cease to be an
officer of the ship.

Mr. NORTON said he believed the officer was
detained a prisoner, and that a court-martial
could not be held until two of Her Majesty’s
vessels came to Brisbane, because there were not
enough officers here of the right grade to form a
court,

The PREMIER said that officers of the
Tmperial Navy were amenable to the law of
England as well as anyone else, and he supposed
that theofficersof the ¢ Gayundah” were amenable
to the law of this country as well as any other
person.

Mr, NORTON said the matter was not tried
in the ordinary courts of the colony, but the
officer was detained on board his vessel untila
sutficient number of officers came here to try the
cage by court-martial,

The PREMIER said the difficulty did not
arise from flying the white ensign. There must
be a certain number of officers of equal rank to
try an officer by court-inartial, and there were
not sufficient in the service of the colony. That
was one of the disadvantages of having a very
small service. Where there was a large number
of officers, of course they could always get suffi-
cient to form a court-martial. Where there was
only one ship there were no other officers except
the officers of that ship, and they could not try
one another. That was one of the disadvantages
of having a very small fleet, and one of the
advantages of having that fleet attached to a
larger ﬂeet, where a requm’ce number of officers
could be found.

Mr. NORTON said in that case, if the small
fleet of this colony were not attached to a larger
fleet, the gentleman he had referred to could not
be dealt with at all. If that were so, he thought
they had better introduce some system by which
the ordinary course of law should be made to
apply to naval officers.

The PREMIER : What do you mean ?

Mr, NORTON said he meant that naval
officers should be treated in exactly the saine
way as civilians., He was sure the creditors of
that officer did not see why he should not be so
treated,
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The PREMIER sald the hon. member was
mixing up the difficulty of trying an officer by
court-martial and the question of the liability of
a naval officer to civil process. They were two
entirely distinct things. As far as liability to
civil process was concerned a naval officer was
entirely liable the same as anybody else, but as
to trying an officer by court-martial before dis-
missing him from the service, that could only be
done by a sufficient number of officers of equal
rank ; it was another question altogether.

Mr. NORTON said, if that were the case he
thought the law in that instance must have been
imperfectly administered, because, from his recol-
lection of the affair, the creditors wished to take
action against the officer, but were debarred from
doing so.

The PREMIER : There must have been some
mistake,

Mr, NORTON said if it was a mistake it was
desirable that they should know it. But per-
haps the hon. member for ¥noggera, who was
acting for the Premier at the time, could explain
the matter better than he could, as he had
forgotten some of the circumstances.

Mr, DICKSON said there did appear in the
Press at the time some amusing story about
private creditors having sent a bailiff to arrest
one of the officers of the ‘“Gayundah.” There
was a very amusing account of a chase, an
escape, and a capture. The circumstances
attending that civil process were never laid
before the Government, and he therefore did
not know whether the civil process was set at
defiance by the white ensign or not. How-
ever, a very much larger question than that
was involved in the discussion of the vote—
namely, that, as had been shown during the
recess, when an officer of the “Gayundah?”
rendered himselfamenable to a court-martial they
were at present unable under the Defence Act
to try that officer, and therefore he could only
be tried by Imperial officers under the Naval
Discipline Act. That necessitated the arrival of
one or two of Her Majesty’s ships in this port for
the purpose of trying the case; and although
there were advantages in having a vessel like the
“Grayundah” attached to the admiral’s squadron
for the purpose of exercise and discipline, yet it
did seem absurd that the colony, which bore the
expense of the salaries of the officers, should
have no voice in punishing them or dis-
rating them, if such should be necessary.
The matter was one which might fairly be in-
quired into. It was considered desirable—and he
was not averse to that view of the subject—that
the vessel should be attached to the Admiral’s
squadron, so that she might be uunder proper
discipline, and not allowed to rust in harbour,
They had not had much service from her up to
the present time, with the exception of flying
the white ensign. Seeing that a very serious
difficulty indeed did arise lately in connection
with the discipline of the ship and her crew, he
thought it might well be considered whether the
colony should not manage the vessel on their
own account. She might then be converted to
some profitable use. The Premier might be
able to inform the Committee what his views
were on the question as to still maintaining her
in connection with the Admiral’s squadron.

The PREMIER said that all the papers rela-
ting to the gunboat ““Gayundah” serving under
the Admiralty had been laid on the table of the
House from time to time. The correspondence
began in OQctober, 1884, before the ships had
arrived. They were ordered, he thought, in
1882, by the preceding Government. When they
arrived, the question arose, what was to be done
with them ? Before they actually reached the
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colony, on the 23rd October, 1884, he wrote the
following letter to His Excellency the Governor,
which was laid on the table of the House in
1885 i—
“ Colonial Secretary’s Office,
““ Brishane, 23rd October, 1884,

¢ SIR,

*Your Excelleney is aware that the two gun-
boats, ‘Palmna’ and * Gayundah,” ordercd hy this
Government, have lately becn launched, and that the
‘Paluma’ has been placed at the disposition of the
Admiralty for surveying purposes.

“In considering the uses to whieh the ‘Guyundah’
should e put, the Government have been impressed
with the idea that her usefulness would, from svery
point of view, be impaired if she shouid be permitted
to be unemployed for eonsiderable periods of time.
Her active services are not likely to be continuously
required, although it will probably be desirable that she
should be available for conveying the Governor of the
colony, or MMinisters, on offieiat journeys of special
importance, as weil as for occasional visits to the out-
Iving islands in Torres Straits which are under the
jurisdietion of Queensland, and other similar services
that may from time to time suggest thewselves. She
should also he availahle for the annual tvaining of the
Naval Defence Torce which it is intended to establish.

‘“ Allowing, however, for these uses, the Government
are of opinion that the ‘Gayundah’ might, with
mutual advantage to Her Majesty’s Imporial Govern-
wment and that of this colony, be employed, wien not
specially required for colonial services, for the general
purposes of the Australian squadron, and under the
direction of the Admiral commanding the Australiun
Station.

“They do not anticipate that any particular difficulty
would be round to arise it the ship were attached to that
squadron with the understandiiig that she should be
detached from time to time, at the request of the
Goveruor, and made available for the local and special
serviees to which I have referred.

I have, therefore, the honour to request that Your
Excellency will be good enough to offer the scrvices of
the * Gayundah’ to the Admiralty, through the Right
Illonourable the Secrctavy of State for the Colonies,
under the provisions of the -Colonial Naval Defence
Act of 1865, and on the basis of the conditions above
stated.

“The acceptance of this offer would, I hope, tend to
initiate a systemnr of united action on the part of the
Immporial and Colonial Governments for the purposes
of colonial defence, while it wonld also tend to greatly
increase the ellicieucy of colonial ships of war when
called upon for active service, und would, moreover,
incidentally confer upon the ships and their officers a
larger prestige and intluence.

““I have, etc.,
¢S, W, GRIFIITH.
“1Iis Excellency Siv Anthony Musgrave, K.C.AM.G.,
“ Governor,”’

He would observe upon that letter that there
could be no doubt that a ship lying always in
harbowr without any work to do was not likely
to improve either her hull or her machinery, and
certainly not the men employed on board of
her. 1t was desirable that she should be
ocoasionally at sea. Although the “ Gayun-
dah” in time of war would e a most impor-
tant adjunct to the defence of Dloreton Bay,
still her use in time of peace was practically only
for the training of the Naval Defence ¥orce, with-
cut which training o foree of that kind could not
be properly trained at all.  "Then some other cor-
respondence passed, and that letter of his was
sent by His Hxcellency to the Secretary of State.
A question arose as to whether she could be
taken by the Adwmiralty or not. Further corres-
pondence passed, which was laid on the table in
the same session of 1885, Then an Order in
Council was made by Her Majesty authorising
the Admiralty to accept the services of the
““Gayundah.” That was sent heve in a despatch
dated the 2 3 Further correspon-
dence was laid on the table of the House in
the same year, stating in effect that a warrant
had been issned authorising the vessel to fly the
blue ensign, and also stating that the admiral on
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the station had been requested to report asto
the best practical use to which the ““ Gayundah”
could be put. Other papers were laid on the
table of the House in 1886, showing the corres-
pondence that had taken place on the point
whether it should be the blue eusign or the white
ensign. He need not call the attention of hon.
members to the fact that a ship wearing the
white ensign was entitled to be considered as
a ship of war wherever she might be. With-
out it colonial war-ships had mno authority
whatever except in their own waters; and as
soon as they got three miles beyond the
coast they were simply private ships, and the
officers ceased to be otficers, and had no more
control than the captain of a merchant ship. It
was a very serious thing for the vessels to be
crippled in any work outside Queensland waters,
and he thought it would be very undesirable that
a ship maintained at the expense of the ** Gayun-
dah” should cease to be a war-ship, and become
merely a private yacht as soon as she was three
miles beyond the coast, which she must neces-
sarily doin going anywhere by sea. The Admiral’s
report as to the best use to which the ** Gayun-
dah” could be put was not written until the
11th November, 1886. That report, by Admiral
Tryon, had not yet been laid on the table, and
was as follows i —
¢ ¢ Nelson,” at Melbourne,
“1lth November, 1886.

“SIR,

“Referring to their Lordships’ letter of 4th
August, 1885, and to that of 30th November, 1885, as to
my arranging for the useful employ of ¢ Gayundal’ in
concert with the Government of Queensland.

“2. Having considered tlie capabilitiesof that vessel and
the serviceshe was designed to render—namely, coastal
and harbour defence—and having corresponded with the
Government of Queensland on the subject, that vessel
has been in the main employed this season visiting the
several ports between Brisbanc and Thursday Island,
familiarising the officers and crew with the waters
within the Barrier Reef, but above all, embarking and
training the several naval brigadces which exist at
diffcrent ports.

“3. At this time Quednsland possesses no other vessel
suited for the above purpose, nor any other means of
training thess corps tomodern guns. Without the aid of
this vessel these corps wounld lapse into a semi-military,
scmi-naval state, which should be avoided.

“4. Whether from an Iuperial or local point of vicw, I
can devise no ore important work for © Gayuudah.’
The performance of the above sketched duties will
secure the maintenance of the vessel in a condition of
efliciency ready forany other service.

“ It would be a pity to divert her irom those duties
save some exceptional call for her services is made, to
meet which she always would be held ready.

“5, Referring to  their Lordships’ letter of 22nd
July, 1836, No. 178, 1610, granting the white cnsign
and pendant to that vessel, her services heing duly
accepted, I see no reason why the ‘ Gayundah’ should
be diverted from the present task on which she is so
nsefully employed.

“I'rom time to time it can be varied by the Com-
mander-in-Chiet acting in concert with the Government
of Queensland. The vessel, acting on the lines sanc-
tioned by the Commander-in-Chief, would not be
diverted from those lines without his being previously
inforimed by Iis Ixccllency the Governor or by the
oflicer in command.

“6. Under this proposal all the responsibility with
the cost for the maintenance of the vessel in every
respect would remain wnchanged—uainely, with the
Government of the colony—and with it would he also the
discipline of the ship, which would be maintained under
the existing Quecensland Act.”’

That was a mistake on the part of the Admiral,

7. The mewmber responsible to Parlizunent for the
state of the forces, for the ecliciency of the naval
brigadesand for ber equipinent and maintenance, would
still be able to direct her movements to snit the most
convenient time and periods for condueting the drills.
The vessel would be cpen to inspection by the Com-
mander-in-Chief or by any senior oflicer, and her relations
to the ships of the squadron would be much as is the
case with ships of the first reserve, the gunnery ships,
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and the training ghips at home, to the fleet atlarge ; and
I venturc to think that the spirit of their Lordships’
wishes will be met, as also will be the local require-
ments t0 which I attach a very great iinportance.”
That was forwarded to the Admiralty, who
approved of the suggestions, and then the corres-
pondence was sent out to the Governor here,
Those were the lines upon which the *‘Gayundah”
had been employed. During the last two or three
months she had not been out of port, for reasons
which had been satisfactorily explained. Those
were the functions she had to perform. It was
necessary, if she was to be of any use at all
when required in time of war, that the men
should be acquainted with the coast, and that
her hull and machinery should be kept in
an efficient state fit for going to sea. More-
over, if they were to have naval brigades
on the coast, they should have opportunities of
drill and training from time to time. Those
were, lie understood, the objects with which she
was originally ordered by the predecessors of the
present Government, and those were the duties
in which she had been employed since the present
Government had had charge of her.

Mr. MOREHEAD said the Committee would
require a little more information than the Chief
Secretary had given with regard to that vote
before they passed it. They had heard from the
hon. gentleman in his last remarks that the
“ Gayundah” had to perform certain duties,
amongst others to carry the Governor about the
coast when necessary. He did not think she had
done that.

The PREMIER : I had not seen her when I
wrote that letter.

Mr. MOREHEAD said, surely if she was
safe enough to take the Naval Brigade about, she
was safe enough to take the Governor about.
He, as Commander-in-Chief of the Forces, should
take as much risk as any sailor in the colony.
If she was not safe for the Governor she was not
safe for a sailor.

The PREMIER : She is safe enough.

Mr. MOREHEAD said yes, and he should
think she was fast enough. Amongst other
things she was to be made use of in the annual
training of the Naval Brigade. Had she been
useil for that purpose ?

The PREMIER : Yes.

Mr. MOREHEAD : If so, how often and how
inzmy of the Naval Brigade had been trained by
her ?

The PREMIER : The Naval Brigade at every
port.

Mr. MOREHEAD : And for what time?
The PREMIER : A few days.

Mr. ZIOREHEAD said the bulk of her time
was spent in getting her patent paint dirty in
Garden Reach, then going into dock and getting
cleaned, and then going down to (arden Reach
and getting dirty again, and so on. He believed
she had been once in action ; they only knew
that from the indirect statement of the Com-
mandant of the land forces, and on that
occasion she appeared to have exhibited what
might mnot be inappropriately termed 1ais-
directed energy, because, according to the re-
port of the Commandant, that vessel, which
was intended to defend the port, actually
destroyed, on paper, some of their defenders.
Possibly there might be some jealousy between
the two departmnents, the river and land
departinents. At any rate they knew that from
the report of the Comicandant. He (Mr,
Morehead) did not know why they should not
have a report from the officer, whom he might not
inappropriately term “the admiral ”—the local
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admiral-—as well as from the local general. They
had no official report as to the outguings or incom-
ings, orgeneral conduct of the “Gayundah”during
the last twelve months, but they had one from
the Commandant of the land forces, Now, there
seemed to be a matter of some considerable
importance, more importance than the Premier
attached to it, between flying the white flag and
flying the blue. That was proved pretty clearly
in the case of Lieutenant Hesketh, and within
the last few days they had another case in which
he supposed an underworked and overpaid
member of the Marine Defence Force landed at
Kangaroo Point and selected as the object of his
attack no less a person than the town clerk. They
had heard how that man, Hazlewood, was found at
alate hour in an advanced state of, let them hope,
intoxication on the premises of the town clerk,
and on proceeding to remove him, that gentleman
was subjected to a brutal assault. And what was
the outcome of it? Was that man treated as any
other man would have been who had committed
an assault : taken before the police magistrate and
probably committed for trial, or, at any rate,
committed to gaol for six months? Noj he was
taken possession of by the white flag brigade, who
discovered, apparently, that he was gulty of an
offence against naval discipline. He was taken on
board the ship; he (Mr. Morehead) believed his
grog was stopped ; at all events it was so stated
in the report that that was part of the very
heavy punishment he received. He was also
ordered to stand on the lee side of the ship, to
smoke only at certain intervals, and to expecto-
rate into the river only on that side of the vessel.
That, or something like i, was the punishment
imposed upon him. If he had been an ordinary
citizen of Brisbanehe would have beensubjected to
very severe punishment indeed, but he was taken
possession of by the white flag men and removed
into the vessel lying in mid-stream. That was
one advantage an individual possessed from being
under the white flag; but it was a distinct
disadvantage to those who happened to be under
the blue or the red flag. They would certainly
get the worst of it if that was the way in which
justice was to be administered by those white
flag men.

The PREMIER: You ought to know the
practice before you talk like that.

Mr. MOREHEAD said the practice was the
facts he had stated. That was the practice as
far as it was known to those who were not in the
inner circle or ring. He knew no more about it
than any other member of the Committee.
They knew that the outrage had been committed,
and that certain punishment was reported as
having been imposed.

The PREMIER : Not for that.

Mr. MOREHEAD said, for some breach of
naval discipline—for being on shore without
leave.

The PREMIER :
prosecute.

Mr. MOREHEAD : If Mr. Marshall did
refuse to prosecute that did not do away with
the assault. He (Mr. Morehead) might have his
watch stolen, and he might refuse tu prosecute,
but that did not make the theft any the less,

The PREMIER : Captain Wright is not a
police officer.

Mr. MOREHEAD : He did not say he was ;
he sincerely hoped he was not. And that Mr.,
Hazlewood—he supposed he must call him
“Mr.,” being in the force—instead of being
prosecuted criminally for a gross outrage
against the civil rights of a subject, was
taken by the naval authorities and punished
for Dbeing on shore without leave. He
thought it was time that .that naval force

Mr. Marshall refused to
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was brought to a close one way or another,
either by abolishing the vote altogether, orlaying
up the “ Gayundah” in crdinary, which could be
done at a very small cost. He believed that the
whole staff required to work her could be easily
supplied within a few days. They found that
while the vessel was at the Garden Reach it
required eight stokers, amongst other men, to
look after her, at a cost of £L708 per annum.
They were permanently engaged, and to do
what ? To drift her down to Moreton Bay once
in three or four months, and he supposed at
about the same intervals to get up steam to
take her iuto the dock, and get steam up to
get her out again, He supposed stokers were
not difficult to obtain, even at a few hours’
notice ; certainly he did not think it could be
argued that eight stokers should be kept con-
stantly on board, Also, in regard to the payments
they made in the higher grades of the service—
assmining that the stokers, although very well
paid, occupied a subordinate position—they
found that the commander received a salary
of £606 a year, and, by a very proper pro-
vision attached to the estimate, having regard
particularly to the fact that the * Gayundah”
did not go to sea very often, he was supplied
with a residence on shore, at the rate of £120
per year, making altogether £720. That house
allowance was very proper, because in summer
it must be intolerably hot in the ‘“Gayundah”
lying in that almost breezeless reach of the
river, and it showed the kindness of the Com-
mittee in the past, and which would probably
be continued in the future ; and it reflected great
credit upon them, Then there was the lieu-
tenant-instructor, who did not live on board the
ship ; hehad an allowance to live on shore ; and
the torpedo-artificer was in the same position.
Let hon. members examine that well-ordered
household from beginning to end and see the small
village they had lying within a quarter of a mile
of that House. What must the pay of that family
be ? There was a commander who lived on shore,
a senior lieutenant, a chief engineer, and an
assistant engineer, a gunner and instructor, a
master-at-arms, a ship-steward, a ward-room
steward, a captain’s servant, a chief boatswain’s
mate, eight stokers, a carpenter, a quarter-
master, a cook, two second-class petty officers,
an armourer, twelve seamen, a painter, a ward-
room officers’ servant, and six boys, at an expense
of £4,422 per annum. Was it to be supposed
for a moment, that even if the financial position
of the colony was better than it was, they woula

sit down and submnit to such an expendi-
ture as that? What did they get for it?
So far as he made out, nothing atall. There

was a great deal to be said in favour of
keeping a defence force—a land force —on
reasonable terms ; or terms such as he suggested
the other night although the Committee thought
otherwise, but what he had mentioned was only
part of the expense of their marine force. If
they looked farther on they would see there was
an amount for rations—£1,200—to0 be added to
the £4,422. The lieutenant-instructor, he saw,
received £300 a year, and the clerk to senior
naval officer and paymaster to Marine Force
received £200, The surgeon received £100, and
he should like to know who got that pay.
There could not be a surgeon on board the ship.

The PREMIER : He does not live on board,

Mr, MOREHEAD saild he supposed it was
some Brisbane doctor who had received it ; he
assumed so. Then there was a messenger and
office-keeper—did he live on board the ship? The
torpedo artificer received £200 a year, and five
drill instructors £500 a year,

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN ; The torpedo
artificer has a house on shore,
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The PREMIER: T suppose the torpedoes
ought to look after themselves.

Mr, MOREHEAD said he had expressed no
opinion that the torpedoes ought to look after
themselves; but he had no doubt that they
were as well able to lovk after themselves
as the torpedo artificer was able to look after
them. He dared say that practically they did
look after themselves. He would again ask
whether such an expenditure was not, under any
circumstances, monstrous ? Hvery member of
the Committee knew what the ¢ Gayundah” did
and what they got out of her; and they mustall
admit that the expenditure was extravagant and
wasteful in the extreme. The amount con-
tributed towards the Naval Brigade was com-
paratively small, and it would be noticed that
nearly the whole of the vote went towards the
““white flag.” It went to support a vessel
which was only a hybrid after all—which was
not absolutely under the control of the Colonial
Government ; in fact, being under the white
flag, it was liable to be taken by the Imperial
Government whenever it suited them.

The PREMIER : No.

Mr. MOREHEAD said, practically it was so.

The PREMIER : It is not so.

Mr., MOREHEAD said when he saw the
white flag flying from that ship, and saw the
officers going about in the Imperial uniform

The PREMIER: They do not. You don’t
know a uniform when you see it.

Mr, MOREHEAD saidhe did; at any rate he
knew the hon. gentleman’s., He had not forgotten
it, but believed he would be able to recognise it
from one end of Queen street to the other ; so that
the hon. gentleman’s assertion that he did not
know a uniforin when he saw it must be limited,
so far as the direction which he had indicated
went, His own impulse would be to knock the
whole thing on the head—to vote for the excision
of the whole amount.

The PREMIER : Move it.

Mr. MOREHEAD said he knew the Chair-
man’s experience, as well as his own, was
long enough to make them aware that 1t was
quite within his province to move i, even
without the permission of the dictator. e
knew he could move it, and perhaps he would
move it. As he had said, his first impulse
would be to wipe the whole vote out, if possible ;
but he afterwards considered that they should
only leave enough of the vote to enable
them to lay up the *Gayundah” in ordinary,
with a sufficient number of men, including
the torpedo artificer, if they chose, Lo look
after her and keep her in proper order. He did
not think the Premier could justify the way in
which money had been spent in regard to the
¢ Gayundah” during the last twelve months.
If he could, he could do more than he gave him
credit for.

The PREMIHER said it was a serious matter
and deserved to be dealt with serionsly, and not
in the frivolous manner in which it had been
by the leader of the Opposition. Tt was not a
matter of play. He did not ask for the money
for the “Gayundah” as an idle toy to be
kept for the amusement of those on bhoard. The
Committee had to deal with a serious business.
¥rom that point of view he asked the Com-
mittee to deal with it. If they thought they
might accept the frivolous views of the hon.
member opposite, which would be laughed at by
anyone with the most elementary notion of
naval affairs, they could do so; but if they
thought otherwise, he hoped they would give
heed to what he said, and serionsly deal with the
matter. The hon. member referred to the case
of Hazlewood just now; but the Government
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could not guarantee that any man on the
“ Gayundah,” or any member of the Police
Torce, or any member of the Civil Service
would not break the law. Whoever he was,
however, he was equally amenable to the law.
Hazlewood assanlted Mr. Marshall, and Mr,
Marshall informed Captain Wright, who asked
him whether he was going to prosecute Hazle-
wood, because, if so, he would not interfere till
the man had been dealt with by the civil authori-
ties. That was the rule of the service. Mr.
Marshall informed Gaptain Wright that he did
not intend to put the civil authorities in
motion, and Captain Wright dealt with the
man in the only way open to him. The
injured person declined to prosecute him, and
Captain Wright dealt with him as severely
as he could. He could not deal with him for the
assault, but he gave him the severest sentence he
could for being absent without leave and return-
ing drunk and unfit for duty. As he said before,
the injured person declined to prosecute, yet the
hon. member opposite said the whole fault was
with the Defence Force. That was aspecimen of
the arguments the hon, member offered for the
serious consideration of a serious Parliament.
He thought the man ought to havebeen punished
by the civil authorities, and he did not know why
Mr. Marshall would not prosecute him.

An HoxourasLeE MEeMBER: Mr. Marshall
denies that statement.

The PREMIER said he had his information
from & report addressed to him by Captain
‘Wright the day before yesterday, but he should
be glad to hear Mr. Marshall’s version, Captain
‘Wright gave him the information, without being
asked, in consequence of a statement which
appeared in the Zelegraph; and he said that the
statement was particularly unfair, as the reporter
called at his office and he took the trouble
to explain the whole matter, Of course a
number of persons tried to run down the *‘ Gayun-
dah,” the Defence Fovce, or anything else. Let
them get all the glory they could from making
themselves ridiculous in that way ; but let the
Committee deal with the matter seriously. Was
it to be dealt with on the ground that Mr.
Marshall did not prosecute Hazlewood? How
many gaps were there in the argument? A man
on the * Gayundah” committed an assault; the
person assaulted declined to prosecute ; there-
fore let the Committee abolish the Naval
Defence Force. What were the missing gaps in
The hon. member for Balonne
had supplied none of them. Then the hon.
member referred to the number of persons on the
ship. He (the Premier) did not profess to be an
authority as to how mauny people it took to keep
a ship going when in commission ; but he knew
that the ship contained valuable machinery, not
only machinery for moving her, but also most
valnable guns and implements of war, which
could not be looked after by people not ac-
quainted with them. He dared say the hon.
member for Balonne might send one of his office-
boys to look after them, but the result would be
that in a week they would be absolutely useless.
The men employed to keep them in order
must not be taken on board to-day and sent
away to-morrow; they must be men who not
only understood the ship and the implements
of war on board, but men whose services
could be relied on in case of trouble. Some
hon. members seemed to think that a defence
force by land or sea could be got up by simply
putting an advertisement in the paper saying,
““Wanted, so many men ’—as if there were
plenty of skilled men wandering about the
country who could be got just whenever
they were wanted. He admitted that when
the estimate was submitted to him as the



810 Supply.

lowest necessary sum, he thought it was a great
deal too large, and he consulted Admiral Tryon
on the matter, pointing out that he thought a
smaller staff might be employed when the ship
was practically in reserve, and extra men could
be engaged when she went to sea; but Admiral
Tryon gave him sound reasons for coming to the
conclusion that it was not so. He therefore
reluctantly came to the conclusion that the
amount set down was the least expenditure
that would keep the vessel efficient. Of course
the hon. member for Balonne knew better
than Admiral Tryon, but he (the Premier)
did not profess to know better than Admiral
Tryon, who was a very economical officer; and
when he received Admiral Tryon’s assurance as
to what was absolutely necessary, he proposed it as
the establishment of the * Gayundah.”  The pre-
sent proposal was the same as that made two years
ago. If hon. members thought they could run
the “‘Gayundah” on different principles, or without
men, let them try ; it was no particular pleasure
to him to have charge of the Defence Force or
any other branch of the Government service at
the present time. The ‘ Gayundah” had been
lying in harbour a great deal too much lately,
but there were reasons for that.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN :
they ?

The PREMIER said he did not think it
necessary to explain. He wanted information
from Captain Wright, which he could not give
when away from port, and the ““Gayundah” was
kept in port on that account., Hon. members
complained of the want of economy, yet they
said the vessel should be kept at sea. Then
there would be a large comsumption of coal to
pay for, besides the wages of the men.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN : Yes; but
the men would not be demoralised.

The PREMIER said he agreed that the vessel
should not be kept in port, and the arrangements
he approved of some time ago in conjunction
with Admiral Tryon were that she should be
continually moving about and very little in port.
The instructions given were in accordance with
the letter the Admiral wrote to the Admiralty,
and those instructions were carried out last year,
but not so fully during the present year.

Mr, NORTON said that a few minutes ago he
referred to an incident of an unpleasant kind, and
since he made the statement he had been told on
reliable authority that Lieutenant Hesketh did
not attempt to get ashore to avoid the bailiff,
but went in his own boat to meet the bailiff,
s0 as to receive the warrant in the boat instead
of on board the ‘‘ Gayundah” before his own men.
He was very glad to make that evplanation,
because he should be very scrry to do an injus-
tice to anyone. So far as he had seen, there had
never been anything in print contradicting the
statement that was commonly circulated in the
papers, to the effect that that officer had tried to
escape to the shore. He was informed that that
was not correct ; and he was also informed, on the
same authority, that since Lieutenant Hesketh
left the service he was engaged in employment
at which he was very poorly paid, but that, not-
withstanding his low pay, he was sending down
to Brisbhane a portion of his earnings to be paid
to his creditors here. He (Mr. Norton) felt
bound to mention that, after referring to the
matter as he had done, He was very glad to
have received the information, and to be able to
show that that gentleman, since he left the
service, had acted In a manner so creditable to
himself.

Mr. McMASTER said he was inclined to
think that the Premier had been misinformed as
to the town clerk, Mr, Marshall, refusing to

‘What are
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prosecute the man Hazlewood. Captain Wright
must have forgotten a conversation he had had
with Mr. Marshall on the following morning.
He believed Mr. Marshall was well known to
every member of the Committee asaquiet, inoffen-
sive, peaceable citizen, respected by everyone
who knew him. He (Mr. McMaster) had been
intimately acquainted with him for over sixteen
years, during most of which time he had been
town clerk, and a more truthful man he
did not know., He had had several con-
versations with him on the matter, and his
account of the matter was that the next
morning he came across the ferry with Captain
‘Wrightand madea complaintabout that cowardly
fellow who had heen crawling about his house
between 10 and 11 at night looking in at his
bedroom window or trying to open it. Captain
Wright was astonished and said the man ought
to have been on watch at the time, and the
conversation ended thus: Captain Wright said,
“You leave him to me; I will see that he is
punished, and when he comes out of gaol I shall
dismiss hiw, because there is no difficulty now in
getting recruits, It is not like it was during
the war scare; it is easy to get men now,
and this man will be dismissed.” Mr, Marshall
bad not refused to prosecute, and he (Mr,
MeceMaster) was very much inclined to think
that Mr. Marshall would still put the law in
force. To show that Mr. Marshall intended to
follow the matter up, he had a letter written by
Captain Wright to Mr, Marshall, in reply to one
from Mr, Marshall to Captain Wright. It read
thus :(—-

“DEAR SIR,

“¥ regret that, owing to ill-health, I have been
unable o answer your letter of 14th September
earlier.”

The letter was dated 21st September ; the assault
took place a fortnight previously,

“The man Hazlewood was awarded 14 days’ 10a
(Admiralty punishment), 30 days’ leave and 2 days’ pay
stopped.” .

Mr. Marshall was somewhat at a loss, like himself
(Mr. McMaster), to understand what that 14 days’
10A meant.

“ Owing to his previous good character—there being
no offences registercd against him in the defaulters’
book—TI did not send him to prison; and the man was so
informed.”’

What was he informed ? That he was not sent
to prison? That showed that Mr. Marshall
intended to follow it up.

The PREMIER : It shows nothing of the kind,

Mr. McMASTER said he had had several
conversations with Mr, Marshall on the matter,
because the city might have lost a very valuable
citizen in Mr. Marshall through that coward.
Mr. Marshall’s face was black and blue for ten
days, and had his assailant got a little distance
away when he struck him with that stone he
might have killed him. There was not much of
the soldier about that man; he was a mean
coward. Mr. Marshall, not having heard that
the man was puuished, wrote to Captain Wright
to ascertain what was being done in the matter—if
nothing had been done Mr. Marshall intended to
take the case up himself—and what he had read
was the reply. Now, he (Mr. McMaster) was
certain that Mr, Marshall was not guing to allow
the only punishimnent given to that man to be to
stand on one side of the vessel with a man
looking at him taking his food. Hedid not know
whether the man got grog: he certainly should
not. He ought to be dismissed at ouce, at all
events as soon as he had served his time in
prison. He (Mr. McMaster) did not consider
that he had received any punishment ; it might be
punishmeunt for the Admiralty, but it was not the
punishment the police magistrate would give him,
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The man was to have thirty days’ leave stopped
—he supposed that meant he was not to go
ashoreat Kangaroo Point forthirty days and crawl
about anyone’s house between 10 and 11 o’clock
at night. After that was over he (Mr. McMaster)
would not trust him anywhere even on the north
side. “Owing to his previous good character”
was mentionedas a reason forthelenient sentence;
very likely Captain Wright did not know any-
thing against him before, and had Mr, Marshall
not given information very likely nothing would
have Been recorded against the man to this day.
It was time something should be done with those
men who were lying there idle. They had heard
a good deal about the crew of that vessel. Two
men of war had to come up here to see if a
respectable citizen could get a debt that was
owing to him.
The PREMIER : Where did you hear that?

Mr. MoMASTER said he had seen it in the

© newspapers.

An HoNouRABLE MEMBER : The Press always
tells the truth !

Mr. McMASTER said it was supposed to tell
a portion of the truth at all events, He under-
stood that that man could not be tried because
he was in the service of the Imperial Govern-
ment, and they had been told that night that a
writ had been served on him in the boat.
It was a debt, and he refused to pay it, and in
order to try his case—according to that No.
104, he presumed—they had to wait till two
men-of-war came from Sydney to try him, as
there was only one vessel here. He was not
versed in Admiralty affairs, but he did not see
why people here should be set at defiance by men
whom they paid to defend them. He was quite
sure that Mr. Marshall had not refused to prose-
cute that man, and had only taken no action
on the promise of Captain Wright to punish him,
but he (Mr. McMaster) did not call what had
been done punishment.

The PREMIER said he had given the hon.
member for Fortibtude Valley credit for more
sense than to believe any such stuff as he had
been told--that two men-of-war had come to
make a person in Queensland pay his debts.

Mr. McMASTER: Noj; to try him,

The PREMIER said he was quite sure that
the hon. member’s own common sense must have
told him that the person who gave him that
information was trying to play a practical joke
upon him.

Mr. McMASTER : I saw it in the papers.

The PREMIER said it might have been in
the papers, but it was, he supposed, in a comic
paper.

Mr. MOREHEAD: It was in your paper—
the Telegraph.

Mr. McMASTER : T saw the veszels here
myself,

The PREMIER said that if someone told the
hon. member that those vessels had come to
cauise an eclipse of the mwoon he surely would not
believe it and say, when it was doubted, “Why, T
saw the ships heve.” That was not a very good
kind of argument, and one that he did not expect
to hear from the hon. member for Tortitude
Valley; buat that was the sort of argument he
had just used. Lieutenant Hesketh had been
charged with conduct unbecoming an otficer and
a gentleman, which was a very serious charge,
and one which could only be tried by a court-
martial.  There were not enough officers of the
same rank in the Queensland force to try him,
and, as he had pointed out, that was one of
the disadvantages of having a small fleet—they
could not get sufticient otficers of rank to try him.

My, MOREHEAD : Let us get sowne more,
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The PREMIER said that the hon. member
wanted to have none at all, Lieutenant Hesketh
had been tried for that offence, and, he was sorry
to say, found guilty ; but it would take more than
two men-of-war to make a man pay his debts
who had not the money. Now, with regard to
Hazlewood’s case——

Mr. MOREHEAD : What is his rank ?

The PREMIER said he was an fable-bodied
gseaman. He would read Captain Wright's
statement of the occurrence :—

“Two or threce weeks ago I happened to cross in tho
steam ferry with My, Marshall, who told me that the
previous night he had been assaulted by one of the men
belonging to the ‘ Gayundah, who was trespassing on
his property. I promised to inguire into the ecase, and
the result was that I found W. Hazlewood, A.B., had
committed the assauit; and furiher, that he wasimpro-
perly absent from the ship, and returned on board
drunk.

“Icommunicated with Mr, Marshall, informing him
of these faects, pointing out that the matter of assault
was beyond my jurisdiction, and one with whichI could
not deal; but that Ilazlewood, for having ‘broken out
of the ship and returned drunk and unfit for duty,” had
rendered himself liable to imprisonment under the
Naval : iscipline Act.

“1 wished to ascertain if My, Marshall intended to
prosecute Hazlewood in 4 civil court tor assault, as in
that case his breach of naval law would not have hecn
considered until after he had been dealt with by the
civil authorities.

“Mr. Marshall having expressed his inteuntion of
leaving the case {or mec to deal with, the man was
accordingly charged before me with the offences above
mentioned, and awarded fourteen days® No. 10aA
(Admiralty punishment), two days’ pay stopped *—
That amounted to a fine of 8s.—

“and coniined to the ship for thirty days. Hazlewood
had no previous offence recorded against him.”

Mr. MOREHEAD : How long has he been in
the service?

The PREMIER said he did not know., He
was still liable to be prosecuted criminally in the
civil courts, as distinguished from the naval
court, and no doubt would be punished according
to his deserts. The newspapers had thought
that they had a fine story, and had made the
most of it.

Mr. McCMASTER : I have it in writing.

The PREMILER said it was one of those sen-
sational things that got into the newspapers, but
there was nothing in it except that the man had
committed an assault and had not been punished.
Whose duty was it to punish him? It was not
Captain Wright’s duty.

Mr. MOREHEAD : Yours.

The PREMIER said he declined to do that
sort of thing,

Mr., McMASTER said he thought that
Comimnittee should punish him by cutting off his
screw, Ile had not been so far wrong after all
when he had said that those two men-of-war had
to come up to try Lieutenant Hesketh by court-
martial. They had come to try him for a breach
of discipline on board the ship, and he took it
that his crime was in counection with the non-
puyment of his debts. He could not have been
a gentleman, or he would not have got into debt.

The PREMIER : It had nothing to do with
recovering the money.

My, McMASTER said it was the same thing.
The Premier had said they had not to pay for
those vessels coming up, but someone in England
had. Those vessels had come from Sydney to
Moreton Bay, and he had seen them there him-
self, and he contended that they had come to
hold a court-martial upon that individual, who
would not pay his debts, and therefore did not act
like a gentleman. He still said that, with regard
to Hazlewood, Mr. Marshall did not refuse to
prosecute, and the letter written by Captain
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Wright didnotindicate that he hadasked Mr. Mar-
shall to prosecute, or in the event of his not doing
50 that he, Captain Wright, would take it in hand
himself. Mr. Marshallhad written to askif Captain
Wright was going to do anything or not, and
he believed, even vet, Mr. Marshall intended
prosecuting the man. He believed that Mr.
Marshall and Captain Wright had met in the
steam punt coming across from Kangaroo Point
in the morning and Mr, Marshall lodged a
complaint ; and that he fully intended to follow
it up was shown by the fact that he wrote
a letter on the 14th instant, about a fort-
night after the assault, asking what had been
done, to which he got a reply on the 21st, He
did not wish the Premier to prosecute, but if
Captain Wright did not punish the man, Mr.
Marshall would see what the police magistrate
would do,

Mr. ALAND said he thought there was one
thing in connection with the subject that had nos
been made sufficiently clear., They were told
that two men-of-war had come from Sydney to
try Lieutenant Hesketh; but what wasit they came
up to try him for? Was it to try him for having
incurred a debt with some tradesman of Bris-
bane? That was a point which had not been
cleared up. His opinion was that those men-of-
war had not come up for any such purpose,
but that they had come up to try Lieutenant
Hesketh for some breach of diseipline or unbe-
coming conduct committed by him on board the
“Gayundah.” The tradesman in Brishane had
got his remedy against him for the debt, and
from what the hon. member for Port Curtis had
stated, Lieutenant Hesketh had acknowledged
his debt. He presumed a summons was served
upon him, and judgment given against him
in the petty debts court, and the debt had
since been paid by Lieutenant Hesketh, as any
gentleman would pay it. The hon. member for
Fortitude Valley insisted that those vessels had
come from Sydney in order to try Lieutenant
Heslketh because he did not pay his debts to
some tradesmen in Brisbane, but he (Mr. Aland)

_did not think they had come up for anything of
the sort.

Mr. DICKSON said that was to a certain
extent a side-issue of the main question which
had not yet been answered, and it was this—To
what court or tribunal were those on that vessel
amenable in caseof any insubordination on board?
The men-cf-war had come up, not, it was true,
to investigate any obligations due by Lieutenant
Hesketh to the tradesmen of Brishane, but to
hold a court-martial on certain charges preferred
against him by the senior naval otficer, which
charges were based upon irregularities committed
by Lieutenant Hesketh on board the ship, It
had nothing to do with his transactions with the
tradespeople of Brisbane. They were charges
formulated by the senior naval officer against
Lieutenant Hesketh, on the ground that he had
been guilty of conduct unbecoming an officer
and a gentleman.

The Hon. J. M. MACROSSAN: Can you
tell us what the conduct was ?

Mr. DICKSON said the offence was con-
nected with financial trc nsactions entered into
with the paymaster on board the vessel, in
borrowing money from the steward, That was an
offence against the naval discipline of the ship,
as the charge was preferred by the senior
naval officer, and there being no tribunal within
the colony under the Defence Act to try that
officer, and as the vessel was flying the white
ensign, under the Naval Discipline Act it was
necessary to constitute a tribunal, that two
war-ships should come to Brisbane, The broad
question, to his mind, was whether it was
desirable that that state of things should con
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tinue—that they who were the paymasters of the
vessel could not take the law into their own hands
and frame such regulations as would cnable them
to punish any such irregularities, so that they
should not be dependent on the Imperial authori-
ties. They must not forget that Admiral Tryon
was very reluctant to interfere in the matter, and
that he at first declined to recognise Imperial
responsibilities.  While on that subject he would
say that he would not mind so much if the
Imperial authorities used the vessel more than
they did. He would like to hear the Premier
state at some future time why she had been
allowed to remain for the last three months
in the Brisbane River. That could not be
beneficial to the ship or tend to the efficiency
of the crew. The matter was by no means a
light one ; he regarded it very seriously. Before
he left the Treasury he instructed the Auditor-
General to prepare a return showing the
relative expenditure on the * Gayundah” and
*“Paluma.” That had been done, and would
be found in the report of the Auditor-General,
He did not know whether hon. members had
read it, but the table was full of informa-
tion. As hon. members were aware, they received
a contribution from the Admiralty on account
of the ““Paluma’s” services in surveying the
eastern coast of the colony, and that, of course,
reduced the expenditure. During three years
the cost to the colony, and for navigation
to DBrisbane, and working expenses of the
“Paluma,” was £3,277. That was, of course,
giving credit to the TImperial contribution
on account of surveying. The cost of the
“Gayundah ” for the same period was no less
than £21,041; that included £3,277 for naviga-
tion to Brishane. Those figures were very
instructive, and furnished them with food
for reflection at the present time. They were
paying a considerable amount of money for
the “Gayundah,” to keep her in the state of
efficiency he presumed she was in now, and they
seemed to have no direct control over the vessel,
and, so far, the Admiralty had shown no willing-
ness to recognise their responsibility in connec-
tion with her, At least, he meant that Admiral
Tryon had not done so. He didnot know what
Admiral Fairfax would do, and would like to
learn from the Premier whether Admiral Fairfax
had been addressed on the subject with a view
to making her a little more serviceable than she
had been under Admiral Tryon. If she could be
utilised by the Imperial authorities to keep her
in an efficient condition he had no wish to break
the present arrangement.

The PREMIER said that in replying to the
hon. member he would refer first to the relative
cost of the ‘‘Paluma” and ‘‘Gayuudah.” They
had £7,500 for the cost of the ¢ Paluma,” and
as they were credited with £2,500 a year by the
Imperial Government for her hire, that was of
course a set-off against the expenditure of Queens-
land. They must, therefore, add £7,500 to the
figures quoted by the hon. member for Enoggera,
which, he thought, were about £6,000, before they
got the actual figures, Add £7,500 to that and
they got about £14,000. The rest of the difference
was made up by the difference between colonial
rates of pay and English rates of pay. The men
onthe * Paluma” were paid at English rates, and
those on the “‘Gayundah” were paid at colonial
rates, which he thought were about treble the
former, and that made up the difference. That
was one of the matters that must always be
considered in thinking of a colonial navy. If
people insisted upon having their own vessels
not manned by the Admiralty they must pay
colonial rates of pay., which were double or treble
the Admiralty rates. That was where the differ-
ence of expenditure came in, and the matter was
one that 1t would be proper to discuss when the
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time arrived for considering the advantage of
having an additional squadron here manned by
the Admiralty. That would make a very great
difference in pay alone, besides incidental
expenses.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN: A little
more than double.

The PREMIER said it would be more than
double ; the difference would be very great
indeed. The hon. member for Enoggera also
stated that the Admiralty seemed to have con-
trol of her. He (the Premier) read just now
the arrangements proposed by Admiral Tryon
and accepted by the Government. The ship
was to be employed ordinarily in cruising
on the coast to make the officers and men
familiar with the coast, especially with the
Barrier Reef and those waters, with which it
was necessary they should be familiar if they
were to be of any use in time of war, or a
visit from a hostile ship; and she was also to
visit the different ports of the colony where
naval brigades were established, to give them
training. He did not know how she was em-
ployed during the first six months; he believed
she went as far north as Cooktown., At any
rate she went to Townsville and Maryborough
and Rockhampton, so that she had been em-
ployed in those duties. During the last
two or three months the vessel had been in
Brisbane. As tothe inquiry of the hon, mewmber
respecting Admiral Fairfax, he was notat present
in a position to give him any information, as
he had had no opportunity of communicating
with the Admiral. It wasexpected the Admiral,
who had been absent from Sydney for a con-
siderable time, would be here in about ten days,
and he (the Premier) would be glad to have an
interview with him, and ascertain whether he
thought it was desirable to carry on the present
arrangement or make another. He (the Premier)
would, however, point out to the Committee that
if the colony had a ship of that kind they could
not always keep her going about. She ought, of
course, to goabout from placeto place where naval
brigades were established, to give them training,
so that they might not be merely semi-military
and semi-naval men, of no use on shipboard.
The ““Gayundah” was only a nucleus ; they had
armament for a number of other vessels, but they
could not keep the other vessels, although they
could keep the armament ready to put on board
them when required, The men had to be trained,
and that could only be done by having a ship to
train them in. That was the use to which the
“(Gayundah” was put. They could not have a
ship of that kind at every port, on account of the
enormous expense it would entail. He attached
the greatest importance to the naval brigade
for a coast like theirs there was no doubt that the
naval line of defence was a very important one.
Every place could not, of course, be defended, but
when they remembered what one gun mounted
on a barge did in a war in South America, where
it was the means of keeping at bay a whole
fleet, they would see how necessary it was that
the naval force should be trained to the use of
guns. But it was necessary to give them an
opportunity of gaining that knowledge, and it
was of the highest importance that there should
be a ship for purposes of that kind. The hon.
member talked about the expenses of the
*“ Gayundah”; of course she did not return any-
thing, in one sense, but she was necessary if the
colony was to have a naval force at all. They
could not expect to defend Moreton Bay without
a ship like that. She was built expressly for
that purpose, and it had been stated by the best
authorities that she and her sister ship the
“ Paluma” were the best ships for such a pur-
pose that had ever been designed. For their size,
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weight, speed, and armament, they were two of
the best ships afloat. They had the * Gayundah,”
and now, because some sailor aboard of her had
been drunk they were told that they ought to get
rid of her.

The Hox, J. M. MACROSSAN said he had
heard nothing said by any member more con-
demnatory of the ** (fayundah” than what the
Premier had himself said. The Premier had
told them what the ‘“ Gayundah” should be.
The question was, was she what she should be?
or had she ever been what she should be?

The PREMIER : She has been,

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN: Not for
the last twelve months.

The PREMIER : She was for a part of last
year, at any rate.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN said that
for twelve months she had only been to sea
once, and then no furtber than Townsville. If
that was sufficient to make the officers and men
acquainted with the coast, especially with the
Barrier Reef—which probably they did not see—
he would leave it to hon. members to say.

The PREMIER : I do not believe it is.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN : How could
the naval brigades at the different ports gain
experience and discipline ; how could they gain
any benefit at all under the system which had
been followed for the past twelve months? The
hon, gentleman admitted that she had not been
out of port for that time.

The PREMIER : She has been at Mary-
borough, Rockhampton, and Townsville, at any
rate.

The How. J. M. MACROSSAN said she had
been once there, but not certainly during the last
three or four months. She had been confined to
the Brisbane River, where her officers and crew
enjoyed all the gaieties and attention which were
given generally to naval and military men. But
so tar as naval drill and discipline were con-
cerned, both ship and crew were going to the bad.
If a vessel of the Imperial Navy were kept in
pert for twelve months, no matter how well dis-
ciplined the crew and officers might be, both
officers and men would become demoralised.

The PREMIER : I quite agree with that.
The How, J. M, MACROSSAN said the

hon. gentleman, while condemning the action of
the men under his control, defended the vote
from which they were paid. He did not know
what the leader of the Opposition intended to do,
but if he proposed to omit the entirve vote for the
¢ Gayundah” he should certainly support him,
Although he would not support a motion to omit
the vote for naval brigades, or the instructors
of naval brigades, he would lay up the “ Gayun-
dah” for twelve months, by which time
they could get officers able to make her
what she ought to be, and what she had not
been for twelve months, At present she was
only an expensive toy, and she would rapidly
become worse than a toy, because when the
necessity for using her for serious purposes
arose, it would be found that they had been
relying on a broken reed. They must have some
oneinchargeof the “ Gayundah” whom they could
place confidence in, which was not the case at
present. It would not cost much to lay up the
‘“ Gayundah” in harbour. When vessels in the
Imperial navy were laid up everything was
covered up to prevent them from being injured
by the weather, and there was a ship-keeper or
two put on board. As to the value of the guns
on board the ¢ Gayundah” he knew nothing,
although it could be easily found out on referring
to the Auditor-General’s report, which showed
that the total cost of the equipment—which, of
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course, meant something more than the guns—
amounted to £3,000. She could easily be laid up for
twelvemonths inGarden Reach,and then withnew
officers she might be made into something more
than a toy—into an actual defence, when neces-
sary, and as a means of training men who would
be their actual defenders when necessity arose.
There were six companies of naval brigades,
most of the men of which, he supposed, had
passed their lives at sea. They would be able
to man the “ Gayundah,” whose ship’s company
was put down at fifty-three men, including
three officers, one lieutenant, and two sub-
lieutenants.

The PREMIER: How would you move her
about?

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN said he did
not proposge to move her about; laying up was not
moving about. He would have her laid upin
Garden Reach where she was now, anchored
head and stern, housed over, and two or three
men on board to keep her in condition, for twelve
months. In the meantime they would be able
to consider what they should do towards getting
men who would do their duty to the country
from which they received their pay.

The PREMIER : How will the naval brigades
be trained in the meantime ?

The Hox, J. M., MACROSSAN: How have
they been trained during the last twelve months?

The PREMIER : Last year the ““ Gayundah”
was continually employed.

The Hon. J. M. MACROSSAN : Not during
the last twelve months.

The PREMIER said she had not left port
since his return from England, for reasons for
which he was prepared to accept the responsi-
bility. He wanted certain information from
Captain Wright before allowing the ship to leave
port, and that information was not yet forth-
coming.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN : But she has

been in port at least four months.

The PREMIER said he had not been back
four months, and she might have been in port
six months, as far as he knew. As soon as cer-
tain facts came to his notice he took the neces-
sary steps to get the information ; he had called
upon Captain Wright for a report, which he had
not received, so far. But all that was irrespective
of the merits of the question—whether they should
keep up a ship like the “Gayundah” or not.
He was not prepared to say that during the last
six months the management of the *“Gayundah”
had been satisfactory. He was not at all pre-
pared to say so, but he believed it was not the fault
of the system, but of the men in charge of her.
He did not think anyone could be more discon-
tented than he was with many things he had
noticed during the last few months. But the ques-
tion was, Were they going to do things by fits and
starts, and because they did not like an officer
destroy the system, and when they got somebody
elsetheyliked, startagain? He didnotunderstand
that fittul way of doing business. One day they
would have a commissioner of police, next day
they would not. This year they would have an
Auditor-General ; next year they wouldnot. He
supposed that it was to prevent the evil of caprice
of that kind that the Auditor-Gieneral and the
Judges were placed upon & different footing from
other public officers—because if some mem-

ber did not like the occupant of the office, *

he would vote against the salary. In that
way Parliament might step in and stop any
branch of the public service. He asked hon
members to take a broader view of the question.
He was responsible for the management of the
¢ Gayundah” during the year, although he did
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not know what it had been during all that
period ; and even supposing there had been
some mismanagement he did not know that
that was a sufficient reason for abolishing the
system and throwing the whole thing into con-
fusion. That was what it amounted to. The
question was not whether they were pleased
with Captain Wright or Lieutenant Hesketh,
but was it desirable to have a training-ship of
that kind in commission. That was the question ;
and that she had not been performing duty for
three months was no reason for abolishing her
altogether.

Mr. MOREHEAD said the Premier was
dragging all sorts of extraneous subjects into
the discussion. He had asked him (Mr, More-
head) if he would take charge of the
“(ayundah,” and said if he would not,
would his office-boy do so. Then he had
brought in the position of the Judges, and
said they might as well refuse to have a judge
because they did not like him. He (Mr.
Morehead) did not know that anyone had
expressed a like or dislike to any officer of the
¢ Gayundah,” except possibly the Premier him-
self. They had to deal with a much bigger ques-
tion than the petty petulance of the Premier. He
thought the suggestion of the hon. member for
Townsville a very proper one, by which there
would be an actual saving of about £6,000, at the
same time leaving the naval brigade unimpaired ;
and a considerable margin to provide for the
unforeseen event of having to man the * Gayun-
dah” if necessary. The men were very good
men, but they had been badly treated as far as
training was concerned, and very much neg-
lected by the present Government, The Premier
admitted that during the last twelve months
that had been so. He thought, with the hon.
memberfor Townsville, thatthere wasnonecessity
to move the ship unless some extraordinary cause
arose. They could easily get a crew out of the
numerous Government steamers, the ¢ Otter” and
the small fleet the Government had so largely
increased during their tenure of power. They
could get plenty of seamen from them when
they were wanted, and could easily make up any
shortcomings from the naval brigade. If they
took the amount set down for the *‘ Gayundah,”
£4,422, house allowance to senior naval officer,
£120, clerk to senior naval officer and pay-
master to marine force, £200, and rations
£1,200, surgeon, £100—he did not know what
his duties were; he had asked, but got no
response—drill-instructors, messenger, and office-
keeper, torpedo artificer, and all items after thas,
leaving full provision for any exigency that was
likely to arise, it would allow a reduction in the
whole vote of £5,917, and would not materially
impair the efficiency of the force. If the neces-
sity arose for the ‘“ Gayundah” being called into
active service, there would be plenty of material
left, after making these reductions, to put
her in a very good state of efficiency ; that
was, assuming that the lieutenant instructor was
a competent, able man, capable of being relied
upon in an emergency. Besides, if an emergency
did oceur, with the exception of the engineers,
who must be provided for, a senior lieutenant
could unguestionably be got from the Imperial
ships on the station, and there would be no
necessity forkeepingseamenor stokers, who could
very easily be obtained when required. A ship’s
steward, the captain’s servant, and, infact, almost
every itemunder thehead of ““Grayundah” conld be
suppliedat a very few days’notice, and at the same
time they could effect a very material reduction in
theestimate. He hoped hon. members would look
at it in that light. If they did they would see
that the Government had scope enough to deal
with the question, And, so far as the “ Gayun-
dah” was concerned, he thought she would be
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much better off if she remained where she was
for twelve months. He would like to know how
many days during the four years they had had
that vessel, she had taken out the naval brigade
for training purposes. The Premier himself had
admitted that last year had been one of supreme
neglect.
The PREMIER : I do not.

Mr. MOREHEAD said the hon. gentleman
admitted that it was a period of neglect, and
said he was responsible for it. He was always
bringing in his responsibility, and having done
so seemed to think there was nothing more to be
said about it. He said, “It’s my fault,” and
that was to be the end of it. In the same way
he asked hon. members on that side of the Com-
mittee if they would like to take command of the
“ Gayundah” themselves. That was a childish
way of talking, unworthy of the hon. gentleman ;
because if he was really in earnest in retrenching
there was no better opportunity than in connec-
tion with the ‘“ Gayundah.”

The PREMIER said the hon. member might
not care for the information; but, as a matter
of fact, the men on board the ‘‘Gayundah” were
under a three years’ engagement. He would
again point out that it was impossible to get men
trained to serve on board a man-of-war at a few
days’ notice.  The hon. gentleman talked of the
question as if it were merely the manning of a
ferry-boat, instead of a man-of-war. The hon.
gentleman, who seemed to think that he knew
as much, or more, about the matter as he (the
Premier) did, had approached it ¢ priori, like a
man who had suddenly come here from another
planet, who heard there were ships employed,
but not knowing anything about the nature of
ships, at once assumed supreme superiority over
all other persons who were conversant with those
things. It was like the case of the celebrated
English statesman, who felt himself competent
to tale charge of the Channel fleet at a moment’s
notice.

Mr. MOREHEAD : An abler statesman than

you are !

The PREMIER said he was also a great deal
abler statesman than the hon. gentleman oppo-
site, who seemed to think that he could provide
a crew for fighting ships by putting an advertise-
ment in a newspaper. That, he (the Premier)
could not do. He hoped hon. members would
recognise the fact that if they were to have pro-
perly drilled and trained men in that branch of
the service they must have the means of drilling
them. If there was any defect in the adminis-
tration let them punish the people who were
responsible for the administration, but that was
no reason for abolishing the system,

The Hon. J M. MACROSSAN said there
would be no difficulty in getting a crew for the
““ GGayundah” in the event of the necessity aris-
ing. He was sure that at least one-half of the
naval brigade were as competent as the men
at present on board the ‘‘Gayundal,” They
were all good seamen, many of whom had spent,
perhaps, twenty years at sea, so that, as he had
said, there would be no difficulty in that respect
in time of necessity.

The PREMIER : Those men are wanted for
other ships.

The Hox., J. M. MACROSSAN said they
were talking about the *‘ Gayundah” at present.
He presumed that they depended upon the
Imperial Government for their real defence, as,
if they depended upon their own gunboats and
barges and punts they would be making a great
mistake. As for tallking about the ¢ Gayundah”
being able to defend them, he was very much
afraid of it, There need be no difficulty in
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gettingsailors, Sailors were plentiful ; there were
hundreds of them in the interior upon the gold-
fields, many of them old men-of-war’s men.

The PREMIER : Could they fight the guns?
The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN : Yes.

The PREMIER : Do they understand how to
work these guns ? :

The How. J. M. MACROSSAN : Probably,
The PREMIER : I am certain they do not.
The Hon. J. M. MACROSSAN: You may

be certain, but I am not.
The PREMIER: The hon, member knows
nothing at all about it.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN said he knew
something about it, and he did not suppose
the hon. Premier had much more knowledge of
naval er military matters than he had when
he went away. Amongst all the multifarious
duties the hon. gentleman attended to at home,
did he undergo a course of naval and military
discipline so as to qualify him to be Commander-
in-Chief, and to tell everybody who spoke upon
the subject that he knew nothing about it? He
thought the Premier did not have quite time
enough for that. Probably he mixed in the
society of men with cocked hats, but that
would not make him a military man. They
all knew that seamen might be obtained
at a week’s notice —men to man more ships
than they could raise. There were five or
six crews in the mnaval brigades, of which
there were six companies of fifty-three men
each. He presumed those men were qualified ; if
they were not it was the fault of the men who
had had them in training. Probably there were
some of them even better qualified than the men
now on board the ‘‘Gayundah,” seeing the way
the men had been going on during the last twelve
months. It must be an extraordinary piece of
information which the Premier could not get in
three months., Since his return he had not been
able to get any information as to why the
“ Gayundah ” had been lying idle in the stream,
The Commander had been in Brisbane all the
time; surely he had not been away in the
moon. Inregardto the engagements the Premier
said those men were under, they all knew they
were under engagement; but unless a second
one had been entered into, that engagement must
be very near its termination, They had before
them returns for 1884-5, 1885-6, and 1886-7, that
was three years, and now they were in 1887-8.
He thought the hon. gentleman would find the
engagements terminated some time that year,
There would be no difficulty in finding men, and
in getting an officer to take command, from one
of the Tmperial ships on the coast immediately if
required, as snggested by the leader of the Oppo-
sition.  If that hon. member moved an amend-
ment he would certainly support him.

The MINISTER FOR LANDS said he failed
to understand the arguments of the hon. member
for Townsville. That gentleman said that the
Premier had described what the ‘‘Gayundah”
ought to do and where she ought to be, and what
her work should be, complained that she was not
doing her work, and yet demanded that she
should be laid up in ordinary. He says the
“(ayundah” ought to be employed in becoming
acquainted with the Queensland waters and the
intricacies of the Barrier Reef, and training the
naval brigades in the various parts of the
colony ; and yet he wishes her to be laid up.
With singular inconsistency the hon. member
for Townsville argued that because she had
not been doing that particular work during
the last three or four months, she ought
not to do any more—that she should be laid
up in ordinary. The hon, member also said



816 Supply.

that they had sailors enough on the diggings.
He supposed that meant that the officers on
board ought to be dismissed, keeping only men
enough on hoard to keep the guns in proper
order. The hon. member complained on one
hand that the ““ Gayundah” had not been doing
her work, and on the other hand he insisted that
she should be laid up in ordinary and do nothing
at all. He could not follow that argument at
all.  The ship was well constructed, and her
armament was good and complete, and she was
economically managed, asthey had been told by
the Premier, who went very carefully into those
matters with Admiral Tryon; and they then
thought there was no unnecessary expense.
The leader of the Opposition could make
fun of anything in the world; he could con-
vulse the Committee with laughter upon the
most solemn occasion, and he (Mr. Jordan) had
listened to him just now with very great amuse-
ment. DBut he lamented that when serious
matters of that kind were before the Com-
mittee relating to the defence of the colony,
and as to what they should do in case they
had in reality what they had in imagination
a year or two ago—hon. members would
remember the scare about the Russians, one
Saturday morning when the wires had been cut,
and they did not know what they should hear
next; when there was a panic in the city and
everybody trembled, and asked what the Gov-
ernment were doing to defend the city—that was
a very serious matter, and the comicalities of
the leader of the Opposition were never more
out of place than they had been whilst he was
talking so very cleverly and amusingly upon
that very grave and important question. Many
persons held the opinion that they could do without
their volunteers and soldiers ; but they could nosg
do without a marine force. He had heard it
very seriously stated that their marine force
was the most important line of defence, and
they had two ships which were constructed at
very great expense, but were economically
managed ; there were not more officers than
were necessary, and they knew what their duties
were. Allthat had been very clearly explained by
the Premier, and admitted by the hon. member
for Townsville. Yetit had been contended by
the leader of the Opposition, very -cleverly
assisted by the hon. member for Townsville,
that the *“Gayundah” could not do what she
was fitted out for, and that she should be laid up
in ordinary. The hon. member for Townsville
was generally very serious, treated things very
logically, and did not waste the time of the Com.
mittee, as he was very sorry to say the hon. the
leader of the Opposition sometimes did by his
witticisms. The hon. member for Townsville
was running a tilt at the ¢ Gayundah,” and
knew very well that he was only endeavouring to
back up the attack made by the leader of the
Opposition, which he was doing very feebly and
illogically, considering his great ability.

The Hon. J. M. MACROSSAN said he
wanted to lay the “ Gayundah” up for a year,
in reality, and save the expense of keeping her
laid up as she was now. She had been laid up
in ordinary four months already, and there was
no telling how much longer she would lie in
Garden Reach. If the Government at the end
of twelve months chose to do so, they could put
her into commission again, and let those
on board make acquaintance with Queensland
waters, which they had not done up to the
present time, with the exception of one voyage
up north. The captain took her into Mourilyan
Harbourandgotona rock, and forthat reason con-
demned the harbour—a harbour that the biggest
vessels could enter and leave easily. Dozens of
shipmasters, though they did not wear epaulettes,
bad taken their vessels in and out of Mourilyan
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Harbour and never made a complaint. He must
congratulate the Premier on having at last got
one of his colleagues to defend his Estimates
relating to the defence of the colony. During
the whole of the evening, and for the last two
nights, not one of his colleagues had assisted
the Premier; whether it was his fault or not
he did not pretend to say. Perhaps he had
told them to leave the Defence Force to him, but
had just now unmuzzled one of his colleagues.
He congratulated the Minister for Lands on
getting up to do his little best in defence of the
Premier,

The PREMIER said he should like to know
what sort of officers and men the hon. member
for Townsville expected to get on a ship, when
they understood that their tenure of office de-
pended on the whim of Parliament—that the ship
was Hable to be put out of commission one year
and into commission the next—that they would
cease to hold office as soon as Parliament had an
economical fit, or as soon as they offended mem-
bers of Parliament, and then when there was
plenty of money to spend they could go on board
again. A defence force could mnot be main-
tained on those conditions in any part of the
world.

Mr. MOREHEAD said he had been accused
by the Minister for Lands and Water with turn-
ing every solemn object to ridicule. Had he
ever attempted to turn the Minister for Lands to
ridicule ?

The PREMIER : What are you doing now ?

Mr. MOREHEAD said the hon. gentleman
had talked a great deal about the war scare;
but the hon. member for Fortitude Valley, Mr.
MecMaster, had read a letter showing that sea-
men could be got cheaper now that there was no
war scare, and therefore there would be no diffi-
culty infilling up vacancies on the *‘ Gayundah,”
The Premier stated that they could not get
officers to accept employment if their tenure
of office depended on the whim of the Com-
mittes. The whim of the Committee on the
present occasion was to lay by a useless vessel
for a time and curtail an expenditure they could
not afford. 1If those were whims, he was afraid
they would last as long as representative
government lasted. He thought very liberal
provision was made under the estimate even
with the reduction he had suggested a short time
ago, and he intended to move that reduction ;
but before doing so, he would refer to one or two
items on which he wanted to get some informa-
tion. Was there a senior lieutenant ?

The PREMIER : None has been appointed in
place of Lieutenant Hesketh.

Mr. MOREHEAD : Theun this estimate con-
tains a misrepresentation on the face of it.

The PREMIER: It gives the staff of the
“ Gayundah.”

Mr. MOREHEAD : The senior lieutenant
does not exist.

The PREMIER : None has been appointed,
but there must be a staff.

Mr. MOREHEAD : Suppose there was no
commander and no senior lieutenant ?

The PREMIER : Then we should have to get
them. How can you get a senior lieutenant if
there is no salary ?

Mr. MOREHEAD said he would go further
back. The late senior lieutenant was got rid of
four or five months ago, and the appointment had
not been filled up since then. He supposed the
“Gayundah” had kept just as quiet in the
Garden Reach as before.

The PREMIER : She isshorthanded.
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Mr. MOREHEAD : With eight stokers ? She
could not be shorthanded in that direction. He
would aglk whether the whole of the staff except
the sonior lieutenant had been kept out during
those four months

The PREMIER : Yes; so far as I know.

Mr. MOREHEAD said the hon. member
thought he made a point with regard to officers
and men being under agreement. Would he
tell the Committee when Captain Wright’s
engagement terminated ?

The PREMIER: Ouly the men are under
agreement.

Mr. MOREHEAD said he noticed that
Captain Wright’s appointment was dated 30th
March, 1885, and he took it that the bullk
of those on board were pretty much in the
same position so far as engagement was con-
cerned, so that there was very little in
that point. Following up what he had said,
he begged to move that the estimate of £12,541
be reduced by the sum of £5,947. That redue-
tion included all the items under the heading
“Gayundah,” besides £120 house allowance
to senior naval officer, £200 allowance for clerk to
genior naval officer and paymaster to Marine
Force, and the amount for rations,

Mr, McCMASTER said he would like to cor-
rect the hon. leader of the Opposition. What
the hon. member had referred to was not in
Captain Wright’s letter, but was a conversation
which took place between Captain Wright and
Mr. Marshall. While he was on his feet he
would remind the hon. leader of the Opposition
that if he carried his amendment the ‘‘Gayun-
dah” would probably become a total loss.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN: What
nonsense ! The Imperial ships are laid up
regularly.

Mr. McMASTER said he believed she would
rot much sooner if she were laid up than if she
had men to take care of her, The hon. leader of
the Opposition wasa member of the Government
who ordered those gunboats, and if they were
white elephants he was responsible to some
extent.

Mr. MOREHEAD : Tt is on account of mis-
management,

Mr, McMASTER said he did not think it
was s0 altogether. If they were of no use they
ought to be sold, There must be valuable guns
to be kept in order, and if they took away the
officers and men the vessels would sutfer and be
less fit than now for defence purposes. It would be
far better to sell them altogether than injure the
property that, with the assistance of the hon.
leader of the épposition, had Deen purchased at
so high a figure.

The PREMIER said it would De as well to
understand one another. The hon. leader of the
Opposition told the Committee that he under-
stood the subject a great deal better than the
Government.

Mr. MOREHEAD : He did not ; but I believe
he does.

The PREMIER: The hon. member under-
stood it better than the Admiral. The hon.
member knew what a ship like the *° Gayundah”
could be kept up for. He (the Premier), with
the best information at his disposal, told the
Committee that if they laid up the “ Gayundah,”
as proposed, in twelve months time she would
deteriorate to a very great extent, He wassorry
he had not at hand all the correspondence that
was laid before the Imperial Conference, because
one of the points raised there on the part of the
Admiralty wasastothe difference between thecost
of a ship laid up and a ship in full commission.
Ordinary persons would be inclined to suppose
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that there was a very great difference indeed ;
but the difference, if his memory did not deceive
him, was not more than 30 per cent. If they laid
this ship up now and retained a sufficient number
of men to keep her efficient, they would not
reduce the expenditure much more than 30 per
cent. That was the information he had, and
that was the information he laid before the
Committee, If the Committee preferred to take
the opinion of the hon. member for Balonne, who
knew nothing at all about it so far as they were
aware, let them do so. The hon. member spoke
@ priori.  He knew everything about it, but
he gave them no basis for his knowledge. He
(the Premier) did not profess to know anything
but what he was told by good authority. The
proposal made by the hon. member, if carried,
would have the effect of rendering the vessel
useless, and no one knew it better than the hon,
member himself,

Mr. MOREHEAD : That is not the case.

The PREMIER : It would render the vessel
useless ; it would break the engagement with all
the men, and the Government would have to pay
themn compensation for turning them adrift.

Mr. MOREHEAD : They will all get into gaol.

The PREMIER said the Government would
have to get rid of those they had brought from
England ; there was one at £300 a year, another
at £180, Some of them were under engagement
for a fixed term, and would have to be paid
compensation. The hon. member asked that
they should take away the money even for doing
that. He asked them to repudiate their bargain,
to render this valnable engine of war useless, so
that in twelve months’ time she would deteriorate
to an estent a great deal more than the saving on
that vote; and in the meantime he desired to
destroy the administration of the naval brigade
by taking away the salaries of the officers who
taught them their business.

Mr. MOREHEAD : No.

The PREMIER: Yes, he did. The hon,
member did not know what he was doing, and he
was telling the hon. member. The hon. member
did not care what he was doing; he was like a
child putting a stick into a piece of valuable
machinery ; he did not care what the conse-
guences were.

Mr. MOREHEAD : Now you are very angry,

The PREMINR said he had felt really humili-
ated that evening when he listened to the hon.
member, to think that an hon, member who was
entrusted by a number of gentlemen in that
House with the honourable position of leader of
the Opposition should have spoken on a subject
of that kind as he had done. It was humiliating
to the colony that such statements and argu-
ments should bave been used by a gentleman
holding that position. If they had come from any
member of the House he would have been sorry,
but coming from a man who aspired to a leading
position in the colony it was absolutely humili-
ating to the whole colony, and so would anyone
say who read the debate in to-morrow morning’s
paper, or who heard the arguments adduced.
Had the hon. member said that they could not
afford to have a training ship, and could not
afford a marine force at all, they could have met
him fairly on that ground. Was it desirable
that they should have a floating battery, as the
¢“ Gayundah” really was?

The Hon. J. M. MACROSSAN : You said
she was a toy..

The PREMIER said what he had said was
that if she was a toy they ought not to vote any
money for her. He asked the money for her not
as a toy, but as a floating battery, without which
their defence would be incomplete, That was
what he said she was,
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The Hox. J, M. MACROSSAN: That is
what you said she should be.

The PREMIER : Yes, that was what he said
she should be. What did the hon. member
mean ? Was that thereason for the amendment ?
Did they mean by that amendment to censure
the Government for not properly administering
that branch of the service for the last six months ?

The Howx. J. M. MACROSSAN: Twelve
months,

The PREMIER said hon. members opposite
differed. The hon. member for Townsville
wished for the amendment by way of censuring
the Government for their administration of the
department. Of course, if it were carried from
that point of view the Government would know
what t0 do. They distinctly said, “ The Govern-
ment cannot manage this department, so we will
take the money away.” He(the Premier)could not
speak as to the first six months of the year, but
for the last three months there were very good
reasons, as nearly every hon. member knew, why
the ‘‘Gayundah” had not been to sea. He
did not want to mention them there, but he
was perfectly willing to tell any hon. member
privately what the reasons were.

The How. J. M. MACROSSAN : I have not
the slightest idea.

The PREMIER : Was the amendment moved
by way of punishing the Government for not
sending her to sea during the last three months
when they could not do it ?

The How. J. M. MACROSSAN: Why could
not the Government do it? We know nothing
about it.

The PREMIER : Or was it with the intention
of destroying that branch of the force altogether ?
If hon. members thought that the hon. member
for Balonne knew a great deal more about the
matter than the Government did, let them
affirm it by resolution. Certainly he did not
feel disposed to be humiliated by being told day
after day that it was the hon. member for
Balonne who knew all about those things, and
that the Government knew nothing about the
business of the country.

Mr. MOREHEAD said the Premier had
done him the honour of saying he felt very
sorry not only for him (Mr. Morehead), but also
for the Opposition, who honoured him by their
confidence. e could return the compliment,
and tell the hon. gentleman that he felt deeply
sorry for him, and for the Government, that had
not the confidence of their supporters. The
humiliation was to see the leader of a great party
dragged in the dirt, as the hon., gentleman had
been, night after night—knowing that nearly
every evening of the session he courted defeat,
knowing that the other night on the Defence
vote he only scraped through by a majority of
one, after touting personally all round the House
to try and get it passed.

The PREMIER : That statement is not cor-
rect,

Mr. MOREHEAD said he intended to try all
he could to reduce the monstrously extrava-
gant expenditure of the Government, which had
plunged the colony into its present financial
difficulties, He cared nothing for the sneers of
the hon. gentleman. Perhaps he knew as much
about this subject as the hon. gentleman,
although he might not have dined with the Duke
of Cambridge or shaken hands with Lord
Charles Beresford. He did not know that
one or the other could have made the Pre-
mier either a military or a naval authority ;
although he admitted that the hon. gentleman
thought he was an authority on every possible
subject under the sun, he (Mr. Morehead)
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was there, as other members of the Committee
were, to see, as far as they could, that the money
of the colony was not wasted ; and that he would
do so far as his lichts led him. Whether his
knowledge of naval or military matters was great
or little he did not know, nor did he express an
opinion on the subject. He believed that a reduc-
tion could be made in that vote in the way indi-
cated by the hon. member for Townsville. They
had not the imperialistic ideas on the subject that
the hon. gentleman had. They knew that the hon.
gentleman had come from the other side of the
world with changed ideas on political matters,
not only in connection with this colony, but in
eonnection with the colonies and Great Britain,
Since the hon. gentleman had come back they
had seen great changes in his views. He (Mr.
Morehead) was there as a representative of the
people, and had as much right to express his
views on any question that affected the people as
the hon. gentleman or any other member of the
Committee. He would be the last to check liberty
of speech, but he felt bound to protest against
the arrogance of the Premier.

The PREMIER said he would just reply to
a statement that had been repeated for about the
tenth time that session, but which he had never
yet taken notice of. He had been accused of hav-
ing imperialistic notions, and the statement had
been made so often that he supposed somebody
would begin to believe it. Tt was only one of
those epithets which, he said at an early period of
the session, he was frequently the victim of. It
was not even original; it was coined for the
hon. gentleman by some of his (the Premier’s)
well-known detractors, and the hon. gentleman
picked it up, and it sounded so well that he
repeated it at every convenient opportunity, He
(the Premier) had said nothing since he came
back from Kngland to indicate the slightest
change in his political views since his return.

The Hon. J. M. MACROSSAN: You may
not think so.

The PREMIER said he did not look to the
hon. member for Townsville for his character;
it was well known what the hon. gentleman
thought of him—that was, that whatever he did
was wrong; that he was actuated by the worst
motives, and was entirely wrong. As to that
stuff about imperialistic notions, he had advo-
cated precisely the same things before he went.
Whatever he had stated since his return he had
said before, and it had been tacitly accepted by
the whole of that Committee ; and there was
nothing he has said in England on behalf of the
colony, that had not been tacitly approved of by
the Committee more than twelve months before
he went away.

Mr. KELLETT said ke objected to the
manner in which the Premier received any pro-
posal to reduce an over-estimate. The hon.
gentleman regarded any proposal for a reduction
as a vote of censure, and looked around and
frowned at his supporters, as he could do in a
very ugly way sometimes, That was not a fair
way of dealing with the Estimates. Since he
(Mr. Kellett) had been in the House he had seen
Estimates reduced from time to time, but he had
not heard before that an act of that kind was a
vote of censure. He did not pretend to know as
much as Admiral Tryon, or as much as the
Premier thought he knew about naval matters,
but he believed he had a little common
sense, and that a reduction could be made
in that vote. He believed it was the opinion
of the people of the metropolis, and the
majority of the people of the colony, that that
vote was most useless and extravagant expendi-
ture. He had been asked, dayafter day and month
after month, what they received in return for that
outlay, The *“ Gayundah” was lying in the reach
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of the river doing nothing: what was the use of
her there? If she were travelling about they
might understand that she was of some service to
the colony. They were told that they could not
reduce that estimate, because in doing so they
would ruin the ship. He thought it was not
necessary to keep an engineer on board, Cleaners
were all that were needed and some men to keep
the arms in good order ; that was all that was
necessary, if the vessel was to remain in the
Brisbane River. He noticed that there was an
amount on the vote for eight stokers, Well, he
believed he could get stokers enough to-morrow
morning in half-an-hour to man a dozen of those
ships. He did not see any reason why she should
be kept in Brisbane for three months, and he did
not think he should talke that long to find out what
was wrong with the Commander. He thought
three days ought to be sufficient for that.
He understood that all that naval officer had to
do was to draw cheques when he wanted any-
thing. He only heard that the other day, It
seemed to him a monstrous thing that officers in
the service should be allowed to draw cheques
for an unlimited amount, and have them
honoured. If that were the practice it was time
it was stopped. He thought it was advisable Lo
reduce the expenditure in some way, and that
they might very fairly begin with that vote.
That was his opinion, and he believed it was an
opinion that was shared by the public generally.
He did not know whether the amount was the
proper amount by which to reduce the vote,

The PREMIER : If you take that off, you
will make the whole concern a farce.

Mr. KELLETT said he did not think the hon.
gentleman would have much difficulty in getting
the boat manned if he wanted her in a hurry.
He knew the hon. gentleman had not had much
time to study the Hstimates since his return
from England, and therefore he could not know
as much on any estimate as he seemed to think
he did. Of course he did not like to see the
Estimates reduced, but that was no reason why
he should censure those members who had sup-
ported him well ever since he had been in office,
when they endeavoured to effect retrenchment in
the public expenditure.

The PREMIER said he would just say one
word in reply to the hon. member. He quite
agreed with the hon. member that it would be a
very unfair thing for him to do what the hon.
member accused him of doing. But what were
the facts? A vote was brought forward and
he {the Premier) pointed out that to keep the
system efficient 1t was necessary that a certain
sum should be voted. Some hon. members said,
““No; that is not necessary.” They knew agreat
deal more about the matter than the Government
did; the Government did not understand their
business ; and to emphasise that opinion they
proposed a reduction in the estimate, which, if
the Government did understand their business,
would turn the whole concern into a farce.
How, then, could he take any other course than
he had adopted ? Hon. members might just as
well take the Registrar-General’'s Department,
and propose to omit all the salaries except the
Registrar-General’s ; or the Real Property Office,
and say they should omit the salaries of the Regis-
trar and Master of Titles, the Deputy Registrar,
and the Chief Clerk. Or they might take the
Supreme Court, and strike out the salaries of all
the officers, and then tell the Government to carry
on the administration of justice. They wished to
place on the Government the responsibility of
conducting adepartment, and yet proposed to take
away the means of conducting that department.
He could only take that asit was meant—as a
distinet challenge of the competency of the Gov-
ernment. He could only take it in one way.
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Mr. KELLETT said he did not think the hon,
gentleman’s argument was fair. They knew he
argued very well, but he said they might just as
well cut off the salary of the Registrar-(zeneral
as reduce that vote. That was nothing less than an
absurdity. He was sorry to say that, but he could
not find a better word at the moment. The
Registrar-General had certain duties to perform
every day, and was performing them, and he and
his officers must be at their offices. The ““ Gayun-
dah” officers were doing no duty, and that was
why they objected to the ship lying idle.

The Hox, J. M. MACROSSAN said when he
was in office he learnt one thing—if he wanted
to get his Estimates through, to keep his temper.
The hon. gentleman should take that advice,
as he wanted it badly. Whether he had become
imperialistic or not, at all events he had
certainly become imperious. He hoped the hon.
gentleman would not take any reduction of his
Estimates as a vote of censure.

The PREMIER : I take it asit is meant.
The Hov., J, M, MACROSSAN : The hon.

gentleman could take it as he pleased, but he
should not show how he took it. He might
think what he liked, but should not lose his
temper. The hon. gentleman said everything he
did he (Mr. Macrossan) condemned ; but he
knew better than that. He knew there were
many things he had done and was doing that he
(Mr. Macrossan) approved of. He believed the
hon. gentleman had made great mistakes; but,
notwithstanding, there were many things the
Premier did which he approved of ; but he was
not going to approve of things which he did not
approve of, simply to gain the hon. gentleman’s
goodwill. The hon. gentleman spoke with autho-
rity when he spoke in that House, and he stated
that every member of the Committee knew why the
¢ Gayundah” had been laid up for four months,
and that there were sufficient and satisfactory
reasons. Since then he (Mr. Macrossan) had
taken the trouble to go round to members and
find ont what they knew, but not a single man
present, or the members who had gone out since
the Premier spoke, unless it was the leader of
the Opposition, knew what those reasons were.
He agreed with the hon. member for Stanley
that three months was sufficient time in which
to find out the reasons why that vessel had been
laid up so long, and how did they know how
many more months it would take to find out
those reasons? The complaint was that the
vessel was absolutely doing nothing, and they
were paying the full expense of keeping up a
vessel of that kind. They wanted to have the
vessel do nothing and not pay for her. He
agreed with the member for Stanley that the
Premier’s comparison with that case and dis-
pensing with the services of the Registrar-Gene-
ral was an absurdity. If the Registrar-General
refused to do his work for four months they
would be entitled to reduce his salary. That was
the position they had taken up. They were there
to discuss the Hstimates, and reduce them if they
thought they were in excess of what they ought
to be. Of course when the Government framed
them they no doubt thought in their own minds
that every penny was wanted, and that the Gov-
ernment could not be carried on with less money,
but other Governments had had their Estimates
reduced, and had carried on the business, The
country would not break down if the “Gayundah”
was Jaid up, and if the whole vote was wiped out
the country would flourish as much as usual, and
the administration go on. He thought it wasnot
fair of the Premier to treat that as a party ques-
tion, and to state that the leader of the Opposi-
tion had brought forward the motion ag a vote of
censure upon the Government,
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Mr. SALKELD said he certainly agreed with
the remarks of the last speaker with reference to
the Government treating any reduction of their
Estimates as a vote of censure. That was not a
fair position to take up. He voted the other
night for a reduction, but it was not with the
intention of putting the Government out of
office. If they went out it was not his business,
He took exception to the remark of the Premier
when he said that the maintenance of the Defence
and Naval Forces should not be dependent upon a
vote of Parliament. When the hon. gentleman
came to consider the question he would see that
they must be dependent upon an annual vote,
and in order to’ insure that in Fngland the
Mutiny Act was passed every year; so that the
standing army could not be kept up without the
assistanceof Parliament. HemaintainedthatPar-
liament oughttohavecontrol of all officersand their
salaries. He had been informed that the trouble
over a certain officer who had been discussed
freely of late was owing to the fact that he
had a five years’ engagement and could not be dis-
charged without compensation, and thataccounted

or a great deal of his imperious manner. If he
could havebeen dismissed at amonth’snoticethey
would have had far less friction than they had had
with that officer. Hehad just heard incidentally
that the naval officers were engaged for a term.
If they were, the engagements would have to be
carried out, or the country pay the piper; but
he said those engagements should not bhe
made for a term of years, and in the future
officers should be brought out here, their
expenses paid, and if they did not suit then
their expenses paid back home again; but they
should not be put in positions in which they
were independent of the will of Parliament.
He wished to refer to another matter, The
leader of the Opposition, he thought, was not
quite fair to the Chief Secretary when making
what he must term some of his insulting remarks.
The hon, member of late had been very insulting
to the head of the Government. He was very
sorry to hear it, and he wondered that no notice
had been taken of it up to the present time. He
had referred to the hon. gentleman dining with
the Duke of Cambrdge and shaking hands
with Lord Charles Beresford, and that he had
contracted imperial notions since his visit home.
He (Mr. Salkeld) did not know that the Premier
had shown any indication of that, and he fancied
the leader of the Opposition was sore, because
when he was at home he was not shown the same
amount of attention. The hon. member evi-
dently felt sore, for if he was not he would not
allude to the Premier in the terms he had done.
He hoped those references would be dropped in
future. The Premier seemed to be afraid that
the Committee were going to do something
foolish. He need not be afraid of that. The
leader of the Opposition tried, of course, to score
points against the Government, but it did not
follow that hon. members on the Government
side were going to play into his hands to do any-
thing foolish or rash. He believed the discussion
raiged this year and on previous occasions on that
question was not thrown away, and would bear
good fruit. The Premier said that many hon,
members knew the reasons for the * Gayundah”
being in port, but he had never met anyone who
knew anything about it. He believed that the
more important part of the defence of the colony
would be at sea. If they were to defend this
colony and the other colonies successfully from
a Buropean foe—the only one that would be likely
to attack them—their defence would be at sea.
They would have to guard their coaling stations
completely, because it was well known that vessels
of war without coal were completely helpless in
the hands of a very inferior force supplied with
steam power, He was not prepared for sweeping
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away the vote, but he believed there was a great
deal of extravagance in connection with it. He
believed the Australian colonies were looked
upon by a certain class of people at home as a
egrand exploiting ground for good fat billets.
The Premier made a remark about the British
Admiralty carefully scrutinising their expendi-
ture ; but it was admitted by all but the Admi-
ralty themselves and the Imperial Government
that it was one of the most extravagantly
managed departments in the service.

The PREMIER ; Not on theships; not afloat.

Mr. SALKELD said there was the greatest
waste of money in that department, greater than
in any other department of the Imperial service.

The PREMIER : On shore there may be, but
not afloat.

Mr. SALKELD said that what he asserted
had been admitted recently in the Press, and also
in the Imperial Parliament. The bribery and
corruption that took place in connection with
that department was mnotorious; untold suns
had in past years been completely wasted on it,
and there were very grave doubts now as to the
efficiency of the British Navy; in spite of all
the money that had been expended on it. The.
Imperial naval officers were, therefore, very
unfit persens to teach them econvmy in expen-
diture.

Mr. CHUBB said that what hon. members on
his side complained of was that for the last four
or five months the “ Gayundah” had heen lying
in the Garden Reach doing nothing, and they
did not know and could not find out how long
that was going to continue. As the hon. member
for Townsville had said, no one on that side of
the Committee knew, or could even guess, the
reason why the ship was in port so long. It
was a monstrous thing to suppose that they
should have an efficient ship lying useless
in port and no one able to say how much
longer she would remain there. The Premier
had given them no assurance on the subject, nor
did he tell them how long it would take to bring
that officer to book if he was to be brought to
book. It was for that reason, hon. members
thought that voting that money would be useless
waste if the expenditure was to go on as it had
gone on for the last four or five months.

Mr. NORTON said he could not understand
upon what grounds the Premier regarded the
motion as a vote of censure. The hon. gentle-
men should certainly take a different view of it
from his experience of last week. When the
leader of the Opposition moved his amendment
upon the previcus vote, the hon. gentlemansaid he
accepted that as a distinet challenge of the com-
petency of the Government to conduct that part
of the public business. The hon. gentleman
must have seen from the division that was taken
that the Committee did not regard it in that
light. A few members on the Government side
treated the amendment as a vote of censure, and
made excuses for voting with the Government
after having expressed their intention to vote for
the amendment ; but several members refused to
treat it as a vote of censure. With those facts
before his eyes, the Premier ought not to treat
the present amendment as a vote of censure.
He (Mr. Norton) did not regard it as a vote
of censure, nor did the leader of the Oppo-
sition intend it as such. It was only within
the last two or three hours that he knew
it was the intention of the leader of the Op-
position to move an amendment. Since the
discussion had come on the hon. member for
Townsville said he was prepared to move an
amendment if the leader of the Opposition would
not ; so that the Premier must see there was no
concert on the part of the Opposition which
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would lead him to believe a vote of censure was
intended. He would point to the effect of the
hon. gentleman’s own argument. Because the
leader of the Opposition proposed that a cer-
tain reduction should be made in the vote
the hon. gentleman accepted it as a challenge
that the Government were not competent
to conduct that department of the public
business ; but if the leader of the Opposition pro-
posed a reduction in the amount of the salary
of a clerk in a Government office was the hon.
gentleman going to accept that as a chal-
Ienge of the competency of the Government?
They must give the hon. gentleman credit for
having reduced the Estimates as far as he could,
but if every reduction proposed by the leader of
the Opposition was to be treated as a vote of
censure, the leader of the Opvosition could pro-
pose no reduction whatever.

The PREMIER : That would be absurd, of
course. What I say is that a motion of this kind
can only be taken in one way.

Mr. NORTON said the hon. gentleman was
supposed to employ a certain number of clerks in
his office, and in hard times like the present he was
supposed to have no more than he could do with-
out. Suppose the leader of the Opposition were
to propose to reduce the staff by one clerk, the
hon. gentleman might say that because it would
throw the affairs of the office into a state of con-
fusion he should treat it as a vote of want of
confidence.

The PREMIER : The remedy would then be
to make the others work harder. Suppose you
deprived me of all my clerks, what then ?

Mr. NORTON said if it was proposed to
deprive the hon. gentleman of all his clerks, he
would no doubt be able to satisfy a majority
of the House that he could not do without them.

The PREMIER: But if the motion was
carried, what would be my alternative ?

Mr. NORTON said there was no chance of
such a motion being carried. He was sorry the
hon. gentleman looked at it in that light. It
seemed a3 if he wished to treat the amendment
not merely as a vote of censure, but to compel the
members on his own side to pass the vote at any
cost. Hon. members on both sides had good
reason to complain that the ‘‘Gayundah” in her
present condition was perfectly useless; they
were paying their money away for nothing. The
hon. gentleman said there was some information
he wanted to get from Captain Wright. What
that information was he (Mr. Norton) did not
know, but no doubt it was something very impor-
tant if it took him weeks to get. But supposing
Captain Wright refused to give the information,
what would be done with him?

The PREMIER : What is ordinarily done in
such cases ?

Mr., NORTON said he was quite satisfied that
that branch of the service was less unpopular
than the other. He believed the bulk of the
people thought that the Naval Defence Horce, if
properly managed, would be more useful than
the Land Defence Force. At the same time
they might just as well be without it altogether,
because they were getting no good whatever
from it. He did not know what the officers
did; they seemed to go about the town pretty
much as they pleased, and complaints were
conunon that the naval brigade did not get the
advantage of any training. Instead of getting
some advantage from the ships they were getting
none whatever.

Mr. ISAMBERT said he was not a great
military authority, either on land or on water.
He was a layman in the matter. Still, by pus-
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ting two and two together it struck him very
forcibly that the whole of the discussion had been
very much like thrashing empty straw, or shooting
wide of the mark. If the discussion proved any-
thing, it proved that the two gunboats were two
white elephants; and Sir Thomas McIwraith
was the father of them, and Sir Samuel Griffith
was the godfather of them, and neither of them
had any reason tosing, “‘It’s niceto be a father.”
Although he was not in the secret as to why the
gunboats had been laid up for the last three
months, he believed he could let the cat out of
the bag.

HoNoURABLE MEMBERS: Oh,
might scratch !

Mr. ISAMBERT said that if he let the cat
out of the bag there would be no danger; hon.
members could escape. If there was anything
to be deprecated in the discussion it was the
semi-comical manner in which the leader of the
Opposition had treated that very serious subject.
The leader of the Opposition ought to under-
stand that the most important person in the
House, next to the leader of the Government, was
the leader of the Opposition. He was even more
important than all the rest of the Ministers
together. Her Majesty’s Government was carried
on, so far as Parliament was concerned, by
the Premier of the colony and the leader of
the Opposition, and the present leader of the
Opposition ought to treat matters of such im-
portance a little more gravely, If the colony
had ever felt the loss of Sir Thomas McIlwraith
it had been during the present session; and he
was certain that if Sir Thomas Mcllwraith still
occupied his seat in the House as leader of the
Opposition he would not have allowed such
flippant opposition to arise as it had pained
them to listen to that evening. No matter how
much opposed he might have been to the leader
of the Government he would not have con-
descended to such {irifling, childish, spiteful
actions for the sole purpose of stultifying the
Government. As hon. members would remems-
ber, when Sir Thomas MecIlwraith brought for-
ward the scheme of those two gunboats, in
which he was ably supported by the present
leader of the Government, he (Mr. Isambert)
denounced the scheme. He told the House
that they would be a white elephant, that all
they would be good for would be to go down
the Bay schnapper-fishing. And from what
he had now heard it seemed that they were not fis
even for going schnapper-fishing in. They were
not certainly good enough for fighting, although
they might be very useful as floating batteries.
When the vote was before the House in 1882, he
said theyought to commence their Naval Defence
Force with fast-going steamers, despatch boats,
easily handled, and travelling at the rate of
twenty or twenty-five knots an hour; and not
with such clumnsy, wugly boats which could
not steam more than eight or nine knots
an hour; so slow that they could not go fast
enough to run away from a man-of-war; so
small that they were of little use, and so deep
that they must keep in the open channel, and
could not go into one of the Northern harbours
without touching the bottom. They had heard
that one of those two boats had great difficulty in
accomplishing the journey out, on the ground
that those ‘“white elephants” were such vora-
cious animals, They were too expensive to main-
tain ; they cost such an amount for fuel that
they could not be kept in active service except
at ruinous expense. Hon. members had probably
heard of the ““ Jumna,” which had accomplished
her second journey here; and on her first journey,
he had read in the papers, and had also heen
told by one of her engineers, that although she
was the biggest steamer that had ever reached

no! Dont! It
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Brishane, yet she consumed less coal than any in
the British-India fleet, Those gunboats might
be right in construction, but the machinery was
ancient,

The PREMIER: No

Mr. ISAMBERT said it was too expensive.
He believed he could send an engineer on board
who could point out where the faultlay, Inhaving
a permanent staff of men for those boats—not
officers, who were necessary, but men—they were
simply continuing the evil of the British naval
service. They had no business to engage a per-
manent staff of men. It meant too much red-
tapism, too much imperialism. They ought to
make their naval service more popular, and
organise it more in accordance with their demo-
cratic institutions—make it more useful and
more extensive. Let them pay a certain subsidy
to the steamers plying on the coast, and make 1t
a sine qud non that the staff of men required on
the gunboats should be exchangeable with those
steamers, and as soon as they were properly
drilled they should go back to the steamers again.
The gunboats should be manned by the men
from those steamers—mnot all at once, but in
batches, so that the whole of the sailors in the
steamers running along their coast would be
ready drilled, and in time of danger they would
have an ample supply of well-trained sailors—not
a mere handful of men who were trained on
board one ship, and who seemed to have nothing
else to do but to go ashore and make mischief,
The country had a right to expect from the com-
panies that plied along the coast, and had the
benefit of their trade, that they should also be
useful in time of war. They required defence,
and should also be used as instruments of defence
in time of danger. Inthat way they would have
not only those two gunboats—those two white
elephants—but every man on board those
steamers well trained and used to military com-
mand, so that they could meet an enemy if
one came to their shores—which might happen
any day, They must not look at that contin-
gency from their own narrow point of view.
They were subject to all the dangers that the
British Empire was exposed to. Any moment
that Great Britain was involved in difficulties
Australia would also be involved. If the vote
were reduced as proposed by the amendment of
the hon. leader of the Opposition, it would be
tantamount to destroying the whole thing, and
he should not vote for it.  He would sooner vote
for the rejection of the whole sum than for the
proposed amendment, which would make the
force wholly useless. If those boats were not
proper ones, let them get suitable ones, and have
value for their money, and not stultify the
whole concern. The hon, member for Towns-
ville had found fault with the Premier for
showing temper. Well, he (Mr. Isambert)
had discovered a certain trait in the Premier
too, and that was that, instead of display-
ing temper, he was only surprised that he
could stand the large amount of petty nagging
that hon. members indulged in. He had often
wondered how he showed so much patience as he
always did ; that was what surprised him. He
hoped hon. members would look at the matter
from a common-sense point of view, and not in
such a flippant narrow-minded way.

Mr. ANNEAR said they had been discus-
sing, since he had been in the Committee that
evening, the gunboat ‘Gayundah,” as if that
were the only portion of their navy; but they had
a great many other ships in their navy far more
useless than the “Gayundah.” He wished toask
the Premier on whose recommendation the five
barges, which were being constructed for the
Harbours and Rivers Department, were altered
from barges into composite boats to carry a gun?

[ASSEMBLY.]

Supply.

The PREMTER said he could not say at that
moment on whose advice it was. Did the hon.
gentleman mean, who supplied the designs ?

Mr. ANNEAR said he wished to know on
whose recommendation they were altered from
their first design to their present design?

The PREMIER said that he had made a
recommendation, and was advised by Captain
Wright, and by the Admiral when here, and also
by Major-General Steward. Hehad never heard
anybody dispute before that the course adopted
was the proper one. Those vessels would be
most formidable for purposes of defence in time
of invasion. If the hon. gentleman had read
what had happened in the way of defending
coasts by gun-barges he would see that those
were practically most formidable ships. In
Victoria a great deal of money had been spent in
that way.

Mr. ANNEAR said they might be very formid-
able in time of war, but he was going to show
the Committee that they were very expensive in
time of peace. Whoever was responsible for the
alteration of those barges from the original
design was unworthy, in his opinion, to be named
with engineers, or with any man in the colony
who knew anything of naval warfare. When
those barges were first contracted for, the tender
was accepted of the firm who had made the
other barges in the colony, at a certain rate of
speed on a certain consumption of coal, and
which had proved to be effective, and in every
way in accordance with their contract ; and he
was sure that if those five barges, which were
being constructed at a cost of something like
£30,000, had been left in the hands of the Chief
Engineer of the Harbours and Rivers Depart-
ment, they would have been as effective as the
first barges that were constructed in the colony.

The PREMIER : What is wrong with them ?
Mr. ANNEAR said he would tell the hon.

gentleman what was wrong. He had not intruded
much in that Committee, but he should do so
now. He thought when they saw retrenchment
taking place, and the whole colony almost comne
to a standstill becanse there was a fear abroad
that the revenue had not been coming in as it
should be, they should not incur any extra ex-
pense, Those barges were altered, and what was
the result ? Under the first specification they were
to have a speed of ten knots on a consumption
of three and a-half tons of coal a day; but,
since they had been altered, and had guns placed
upon them, they would only steain six knots on a
consumption of seventons of coal per day. Now, on
an average, ab the very least theyought to do four
trips a day in attending the dredges, and the
alteration had made a difference of 1d. per cubic
yard in excess of the original design. At four trips
a day that amounted to £5 16s. 8d. per day for each
barge, or £29 per week of five days each, making
nearly £1,500 a year increxse each. The cost of
thealteration was £17,000. He thought the people
of the colony should know about that piece of
extravagance. In his opinion the person who
made the recommendation to the Government
kuew very little about it. In the first place, the
barges had two boilers each, which could be fired
by one man, and only one engineer was needed.
Now, each barge had four boilers, in order that
they might all be below the water line, and it
took three firemen and two engineers to work
them. He ventured to say that in the summer-
time the men would not be able to fire them at
all, because there were eight fires and only five
feet space between them, from the face of one
boiler to the face of the other.

The CHAIRMAN: I must call the hon.
member’s attention to the fact that he is not
dealing with the subject before the Committee,
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Mr. ANNEAR said he was informed that
the whole vote for the Marine Force was under
discussion. If he were wrong he would sub-
mit to the Chairman’s ruling. The looking
after of the guns on those barges came within
the vote. He had referred to this question when
before his constituents, and believed that a
great injustice had been done to the taxpayers
by the alterations to those barges. They were
made for taking the silt out of their rivers so
that ships might come up; and spending money
over them in the way he had stated was a
perfect farce, and it was very nearly time it
came to an end. So far as the “Gayundah”
and the other gunboat were concerned, there was
something to be said in their favour, as they were
serviceable for naval defence. But what was
the use of those barges? Two of his constituents
were very nearly killed on board one of them at
the review at Lytton, through the inefliciency of
the guns. The officers, especially in connection
with the naval defences, were very inefficient as
regards construction. In regard to those barges
he knew, and defied contradiction, that they cost
thehpeople of the colony an extra £1,500 a year
each.

The PREMIER said the hon. member must
have exaggerated the figures a good deal, or
rather his informant had. Of course, they could
not have a fighting vessel with its boilers exposed
to shot. It was no use doing that. As a
matter of fact they would now be very efficient
fighting vessels indeed ; but he could not under-
stand why the speed should have been reduced.
There must have been some mistake about
that. They were designed by the Engineer
for Harbours and Rivers, and the alterations
were designed by him also, and he would be
very much surprised if that gentleman’s caleula-
tions were so far out and the speed reduced as
was stated. The information given by the hon.
member for Maryborough as to their cost was
quite new to him, and he thought the hon. mem-
ber must be mistaken. They must not forget
that Maryborough and Rockhampton were
places which had called out for some means of
defence, and they wanted companies of the
naval brigade. What was the use of them
without those vessels ? They could not fight
swimming. They must have some kind of float-
ing gun-carriage, and they could not build special
men-of-war for those ports. To utilise the
vessels employed in the harbour seemed a most
economical way, and he was surprised if they
had cost so much as the hon. gentleman said.

My, FOXTON said he could confirm what the
hon. member had said in some measure.

Mr. STEVENSON : What hon, member are
you referring to?

Mr. FOXTON : Mind your own business.
He was not speaking from his own personal
knowledge, but from information he had
received from a thoroughly reliable source. He
believed that the speed of those vessels had been
very considerably reduced in consequence of the

method of construction of the boilers. Why it
should be so he did not know. He was informed
of it just before the last encampment. During

the encampment there was a naval review or
sham-fight in which the ‘“Gayundah™ and two
or more of those vessels took part, and it must
have been patent to everyone who watched
the manceuvres that the ‘‘ Gayundah” could
steam something like three knots to their one.
They came up by Luggage Point pretty well
together; but by the time they had arrived
off the Lytton fort there was a considerable
distance between them. He was also in-
formed that it would be almost impossible,
except at very great personal inconvenience
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and hardship, for the engineers and firemen to
work those vessels in the summer-time. Unlike
the hon. member for Maryborough, he did not
attach any particular blame to anybody in the
matter, because he considered that the arming of
those barges was an excellent plan, even if it had
cost a little morey. Still he thought it was as
well that any defects that might have been
discovered should be rectified.

Mr. STEVENSON said he was sure the
Preimier must feel obliged to the hon. member
for the information he had just given, because
nobody knew what he was talking about, He
did not even say what member he referred to
when speaking of an hon. member. He said he
had been informed of certain things, but nobody
knew where he got his information, or whether it
was reliable. When he was asked what hon,
member he referred to, he replied, ‘“Mind your
own business.” If he did not let hon. members
know what he was talking about, how were they
to rely on the information he gave?

Mr. FOXTON said he was not in any way
responsible for the lack of brains the hon. mem-
ber might be labouring under or for his density.
‘When he wished to tell the hon. member for
Normanby who his informant was he would tell
him, but not till then; and any impertinent
interjections made by the hon. member in the
meantime would be treated by him with con-
tempt.

Mr, STEVENSON said they could therefore
take the hon. member’s speech to mean simply
nothing, and treat it with contempt.

Mr. MURPHY said it was a pity that hon.
members could not keep their tempers and reply
to one another with equanimity. He thought the
hon. member for Carnarvon had made one of the
most ungentlemanly remarks he had ever heard
used in that Chamber, and he thought the hon.
member ought to have been called to order by
the Chairman.

Mr. FOXTON : Which remark ?

My, MURPHY : The remark made to the
hon, member for Normanby. If was a pity that
hon. members could not discuss such a grave
question without losing their tempers. The
question interjected by the hon. member for
Normanby was a very reasonable one,because he,
for one, did not know whether the hon. member
was referring to the Premier or to the hon. mem-
ber for Maryborough, and he was not astonished
at the hon. member for Normanby taking up the
matter so warmly. He was going to support the
(Government in regard to the vote as he did with
regard to the land force, and he considered the
marine force of much more importance to the
colony than even the land force, because it was
the first line of defence. It was no argument to
say that because the administration was bad,
and the ship had been kept in the river when she
should have been at sea, therefore the vote
should be reduced. That did not show that the
system was bad, but that the administration

was bad, and he did not see why the
force should be wiped out simply be-
cause it was badly administered. He hoped

that the narrow majority with which the Gov-
ernment carried the vote for the land force
would show them that it was absolutely essential
to inquire into the administration of the forces,
and that it must not be allowed to be slummed
over by the officers in charge. So long as the
colony was connected with the British Empire,
so long would it be necessary to provide
means of defence. It was idle to buy ships
and then lay them up in ordinary, because
they would rot when laid up in ordinary
faster than when engaged in active service,



824, Supply.

Tt was well known that the boilers of men-of-
war, after being laid up in ordinary, were found
to be most defective, and that they would not
even go through the strain of a naval review
without some of the machinery breaking down.
If the *Gayundah” were laid up for twelve
months, and there were a war scare at the end
of that time, it would be found on taking the
vessel out that her boilers were out of order,
and her guns would go off at the wrong end.
And if the men who manned the boats were
got rid of now they could not be collected
again when they were wanted. As he said on a
previous occasion, they would then be in the
position of the Victorian Government after
dismissing their permanent force—they would
have given anything to get the men back again
when the scare came, but the men would not go
back because the Government had broken faith
with them, and might do so again. If there
was anything wrong about the gentleman com-
manding the * Gayundah,” he hoped the Premier
would have no mercy on him; if he had made
a mistake, or had not been doing his duty,
he hoped the Premier would show him no favour,
but get rid of him at once. It would be a bad
precedent, however, to get rid of the capable men
now, because they could not be got back when
they were wanted ; besides, England was bound
to be involved in war, sooner or later, and
Queensland, as part of the Empire, was bound to
bear its part of the burden.

Mr. ADAMS said he quite agreed with the
hon. member who last spoke that there had been
maladministration ; and if the administration
had been such that the vessel had been laid up
for three or four months, how did the Committee
know that she was not going to remain there
three or four months longer? He should vote
for the amendment.

Question—That £6,594 only be granted—put,

and the Committee divided :—

AYEs, 12,
FEMessrs. Black, Stevenson, Morehead, Adans, Philp,
Pattison, Macrossan, Norton, Ferguson, Donaldson,
Lalor, and Thorn.

Nozs, 21,
}fSir S, W. Griffith, Messrs. Rutledge, Jordan, Dutton,
Moreton, Bailey, W. Brookes, Buckland, Isambert,
White, Bulcock, Wakefield, Mellor, Dickson, Sheridan,
8. W. Brooks, McMaster, Annear, Grimes, Foxton, and
Murphy.
. Question resolved in the negative.

Pairs :—For the amendment : Messts. Jessop
and Nelson, Against : Messrs, Allan and Morgan,

Question—That £12,541 be granted—put.

Mr. MOREHEAD said he did not rise to
move any further amendment on the vote.
Both he and other hon. members on his side
had refrained from pressing a question with
regard to remarks which had fallen from the Pre-
mierin connection, as they assumed, with the com-
mander of the ““Gayundah”—theyhad purposely
avoided pressing the question before the division
was settled, in order that it might not prejudice
the case of that gentleman in the eyes of any
member of the Committee. Now, he thought it
should be divulged to the Committee what had
been the cause of the long detention of that
vessel. It must be something very serious, and
he thought the sooner the explanation was made
the better, both for the Committee and the
gentleman over whom that charge seemed to
hang.

The PREMIER said he would give the
Committee the information. About two months
ago various statements were made as to the
manner in which the funds of that branch of the
Defence Force were expended, and he arranged
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with his colleague the Treasurer for a full
investigation into the accounts of that depart-
ment, Ittookthe Audit Office morethan amonth
to make up the accounts, and he did not get the
report until the 16th of this month. The result
was that he gave Captain Wright an opportunity
for an explanation, and required that certain
amounts which, as he considered, had been paid
improperly, should be repaid to the Treasury.
That was what had happened since he had been
here. The matter came under his notice very
shortly after he arrived, but he did not get the
report till lately. It was a very voluminous docu-
ment, and he had not had time to read it all him-
self yet. So far as certain amounts which ought to
be repald were concerned, they were dealt with
the day he got the report.

Mr. BLACK said he had not occupied the
time of the Committee at all that evening, bub
before the final question was put he would like to
make a few remarks upon the general position
the Government had been taking up in connec-
tion with the Estimates. It had been pretty well
admitted by the Committee, and he certainly
thought the opinion was endorsed by the country
outside, that the necessity for retremnchment
had never been more pressing than it was at the
present time.  They knew perfectly well that if
the Estimates were carried oub on the scale laid
on the table by the Government, and assuming -
that the expenditure was only what the Govern-
ment anticipated, there would be a deficiency of
between £60,000 and £70,000, and they on that
gide thought—he at any rate thought—that they
were justified, without in any way hampering the
proper administration of the different depart-
ments, in endeavouring to make some reason-
able reductions. Now, they had had the Defence
Force under discussion for two nights, and
that night they had had the Naval Defence
under discussion, and on both occasions they
had endeavoured, not at all for the purpose
of embarrassing the Government, to get some
reduction in those very large items, amounting
together to something like £50,000. The Gov-
ernment, however, had thought fit to take up a
position which he did not think had ever been
taken up before. When any attempt was made by
the Opposition to reduce a vote on the Estimates,
the Premier at once declared that he would accept
it as a challenge of his competency to carry on the
government of the country, and, in that way, he
endeavoured to carry his Hstimates by making
it really o party question. It was tantamount
to saying, “ If the Committee will not grant this
vote as proposed by me—and I consider I know
better than anvone else—we shall resign.” T
was not at all fair to that Committee and was not
fair to the country., What was the use of coming
there night after night to criticise the Estimates
when they were told that no reductions would
be allowed ? The Premier said that evening that
he felt actually humiliated because he had been
criticised.

The PREMIER : No.

Mr. BLACK : Ye: The hon. gentleman said
that he felt humiliated at the idea of members
on the opposite side of the Committee daring to
criticise what he had carefully studied, and what
he considered would be for the welfare of the
country.

The PREMIER : I said nothing of the kind.

Mr. BLACK : The hon. gentleman did say so.

The PREMIER : I used the word ‘‘humili-
ated.”

Mr. BLACK : At being criticised by the Com-
mittee. Thers was no doubt the hon. gentleman
had a certain amount of ability of a certain
sort, but when they considered that the inten-
tions of the hon, gentleman, as expressed during
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the last three or four years, had really never
been realised, he thought they had just
cause to consider very carefully anything fresh
that he might propose to the Committee. He
(Mr. Black) wished to point out that they were
not to reduce any items in those Estimates, and
any proposal to reduce them was to be made
a party question. They must adopt one of two
courses, either pass them in globo, or do what
would be more objectionable—namely, resort to
stonewalling. He would like the Premier to
give some explanation as to the spirit in which
he wished the Estimates to be discussed in the
future. He, for his part, declined to waste his
time and the time of the country unnecessarily,
in discussing items capable of reduction, when
the Premier made the proposals fo reduce them
party questions, and told them they were either
to accept the items as they were, or turn out the
Government. He considered it was taking a
very unfair advantage of the Committee for the
Premier to have wasted the last three nights by
inciting a discussion, and then to take the stand
that he had taken that evening.

The PREMIER said it was rather too much
to accuse him of wasting time the last three
nights. The remarks of the hon. gentleman
reminded him of the old story about the wolf
and the lamb. The hon. gentleman misunder-
stood, or affected to misunderstand, the position
the Government had taken up with respect to
the Estimates. He (the Premier) hoped that
they would have the various items discussed, and
reduced, if it could be shown that reduction was
necessary, But an attack could be made on the
Government on the Estimates as well as in any-
other way. Members came forward and made a
proposal with the view of throwing a department
into confusion.

Mr. MOREHEAD : We never said so.

The PREMIER said if they made such a
reduction as had been proposed it would have
that effect if the Government understood their
business. He hoped he would never be in the
position of a Governinent he had seen in a
neighbouring colony, where they allowed a com-
mittee to sit outside, frame new estimates, and
then come in and carry the reductions. He
would never be a member of a Govermnent that
did that, The Government were, of course, the
servants of the House, but they were bound, to a
certain extent, to lead the House. It was a
degrading position for any Government to be in,
to be bound to carry on the government of the
country where a majority of the House dictated
the conditions on which they were to conduct
the business. When a Government found them-
selves in such a position that the House,
or any party in the House, said they must
carry on the government of an important
department on conditions which they conceived
to be impossible, they were bound in honour to
say so. That was the only reasonable and
honourable position any Ministry could take up.
He entirely deprecated making those things
party questions unless it was absolutely neces-
sary. The hon, member asked what course the
Government intended to pursue with regard to
the rest of the Estimates, He (the Premier)
hoped that every itemn would be discussed
on its merits, But if the hon. gentleman
proposed to omit all the Customs vote, for in-
stance, and could carry the motion, they would
let him carry on the government. He dared
say that there were some minor items on which
reductions might be made, but those could be
dealt with when they came to them. He had
not in the slightest degree taken up any position
that would not be taken up by any gentleman
who understood his position and was jealous of
his honour.
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The How. J. M. MACROSSAN said the hon,
gentleman had stated that he would never be a
member of a Government like that in a neigh-
bouring colony, which allowed a committee to
frame new estimates; but the position the hon..
gentleman had placed his supporters in was far
more degrading, because in making those party
questions he actually made the gentlemen who
supported him vote against their consciences,

HoNouraBLE MEMBERS on the Government
Benches : Name, name !

The Hox, J. M. MACROSSAN : We know it.

The PREMIER: I think a great many on
the other side vote against their consciences on
party questions.

The Hown. J. M, MACROSSAN said when
members on his side of the Committee did not
agree with what was done by the Opposition,
they went over to the other side. The Premier
had referred to the ‘ Gayundah.” He (Mr.
Macrossan) wanted to know when that vessel
was golng to sea? Was she to remain in the
Garden Reach until something was cleared up
respecting the commander’s character? There
should be some other officer on board capable of
taking the ** Gayundah” out to sea, to allow the
naval brigade to have that training they were
entitled to get. He believed there were other
gentlemen in the service besides Commander
Wright who could do that; but if there were
not, they could easily be obtained in the other
colonies, The amount that they were asked to
vote for the land and marine forces was the
same as that granted last year, and the estimates
for last year were exceeded by £4,650.

The PREMIER : No, they were not.
The Hon. J. M. MACROSSAN said they

were, and it was shown by the report of the
Auditor-General. If hon., members would look
at the ¢ Abstract of Orders in Council, authoris-
ing expenditure on account of the financial year
1886-7 in anticipation of legislative sanction,”
under the head of * Consolidated Revenue” they
would find that the amount for the Defence
Force was £4,150, and that for the Marine Force
£500, which made £4,6350.

The PREMIER said he had stated several
times already that there wasa saving in other
branches of the service which would more than
cover the amount to which the hon. member
referred. He could give thesavings, but the hon.
member had gone away and apparently did not
want to know them.

Mr. MOREHEAD said the hen. gentleman
took a high and dignified view of his position
as regarded the duty of the Government with
respect to the Kstimates. Did he take the same
dignified position with regard to his financial
policy? It was only a few weeks ago that he
cast his financial policy to the four winds of
heaven, and he had since held office, as he
admitted, at the wish of his supporters. Was
that a dignified position for the head of the
Government to occupy?

Mr. W. BROOKES said it was rather late
in the evening for them to be bandying those
recriminatory remarks, Ide thought they
might as well go home. But he would just
say a word or two in reply to the hon.
member for Townsvillee. The hon. member
stated that the position occupied by the
supporters of the (Government was degrading.
Now, he would like to know what the hon. gentle-
man meant by that. They did not feel at all
degraded by supporting the Government. Take
his own case as an illustration. e did not know
whether it would be the same as the case of other
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hon. members on that side, but he spoke for him-
self—himself only—with reference to those two
votes for the land and sea forces. He really
should have very much wished to have had a
reduction on them both, and he was prepared to
hear from the leader of the Opposition some good
solid, substantial reasons, which might have
induced him to vote for the reduction. But to
his astonishment he found that, although he
knew nothing whatever either of naval or military
matters, yet he knew quite as much as the leader
of the Opposition.

Mr. MOREHEAD : What did you say your
opinion was outside the House ?

Mr. W. BROOKES said the speeches of the
leader of the Opposition had been singularly
devoid of any point that could take hold of a
man of common sense. He had not used a single
substantial argument, and a great many of his
remarks had been of an extremely flippant and
frivolous character. If the Premier was too
dignified, the leader of the Opposition was too
much the other thing,

Mr. MOREHEAD : And what position do
you occupy ?

Mr, W. BROOKES said, with referenceto what
had fallen from the hon. member for Mackay,
he might say that they were only at the very
beginning of the Hstimates, They had on that
side voted for the Defence estimate, supported
by good, solid reasons, set out by the Premier,
that if they did not vote as they had done the
efficiency of both land and sea forces would have
been so impaired as to render them valueless, and
still they would have been hampered with a very
considerable expense.

Mr. NORTON : We know all about that.

Mr. W. BROOKES said some peovle knew
too much.

Mr. PATTISON: You are one of them.

Mr. W. BROOKES said some people knew a
great deal less than they thought they knew.
Now, why should the Premier be accused of
making every discussion on the FEstimates a
party question? The hon. gentleman had done
nothing of the kind.

. Mr. STEVENSON: He has admitted he
as.

Mr. W. BROOKES said, what the Premier
had stated had been simply this: that. if the
Committee reduced the vote for the Permanent
Defence Force, the Volunteer Force, or for the
Marine Force, it would be impossible for the
Government to carry on those departments, and
he had gone so far as to say that if the Opposition
side of the Committee pursued that policy, the
Oppositionside of the Committee had better under-
take the affairs of government altogether. He
could endorse the remark made by the Premier—
he was of that opinion too ; but still he was quite
sure of this—that when the colony found such a
gentleman as the hon, leader of the Opposition
at the head of affairs it would very soon want a
change.

Mr. PATTISON: Try it,

Mr. NORTON : You cannot do worse than
you have done.

Mr. W, BROOKES said he had no objection
to the Oppesition trying their hand at it; but
they would take the opinion of the colony.

Mr. MOREHEAD: You take the opinion
of Brisbane.

Mr. W. BROOKES said, of course, he was not
a prophet.

Mr. MOREHEAD : You tried it once.
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Mr. W. BROOKES said he was always wil-
ling to take the opinion of Brisbane, or any other
place,

Mr. STEVENSON : You like Brisbane very
much,

Mr. W. BROOKES said he did not like the
kind of talk they had had. It interrupted
business, prevented the easy passage of business,
and detracted considerably from the dignity
which ought to characterise the debates of Parlia-
ment.

Mr. MOREHEAD: You are dignified.

Mr. DICKSON said, before the debate closed
he wished to say a word or two. Throughout the
debate there had been an impression created by
the Premier which he desired to clear up. The
hon. gentleman had expressed the opinion that
the opposition to the vote was in consequence of
the *“ Gayundah” having been allowed to lie idle
during his absence from the colony in England.

The PREMIER : T said during the last three
months.

Mr. DICKSON said he would give the
Premier an opportunity of relieving him of that
impression, but his remarks did convey the idea
that in consequence of negligent supervision,
caused by his absence from the colony during the
first six months of the year, the vessel was
detained here. The fact was that during the
early part of the year she was detained by stress
of weather, and hon. members would remember
the floods that took place; and afterwards, on
account of Lieutenant Hesketh’s affair, he
having been arrested and awaiting a competent
tribunal to hold an inquiry. Immediately he
was tried the ‘‘Gayundah” went to Towns-
ville and exercised the naval brigade, then
returned to Brisbane, subsequently called at
Maryborough to bring the naval brigade down to
the encampment at Lytton. So that it would
be seen that the vessel was not ensirely idle
during the first six months of the year. He felt
that the odium attaching to the non-employment
of the boat had been cast upon him, and he
should be glad to have that impression cleared

up.

The PREMIER said such a thing had not
occurred to his mind, and he was sorry to have
conveyed that impression. He did not intend to
convey any such impression, because he had no
such impression. He said that the reason some
hon. members gave for wishing to reduce the
vote was, that the ‘ Gayundah” had been lying
idle for the last three months. He said she had
been north once in the last six months, but he
did not know whether she had been more than
once.

Question—That the sum of £12,541 be granted
for the Marine Force-—put and passed.

On the motion of the PREMIER, the CHaIR-
MAN left the chair, reported progress, and
obtained leave to sit again to-morrow.

MESSAGE FROM THE LEGISLATIVE
COUNCIL.

The SPEAKER announced the receipt of a
message from the Legislative Council, intimating
that leave of absence had been granted to the
Hon. J. 8. Turner to attend and give evidence
hefore the select comumittee appointed to inquire
into the Lady Bowen Lying-in Hospital Land
Sale Bill—if he thought fit.

ADJOURNMENT.

The PREMIER said : Mr. Speaker,—I move
that this House donow adjourn. It is proposed to
put Supply at the head of the paper to-morrow.

The House adjourned at two minutes to 11
o clock.





